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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other

characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in

reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of RM Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would

make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD?”)

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Yan Tak (Chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Wong Mau Tai

Mr. Foo Chi Ming

Non-executive Director
Madam Tsang Pui Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Professor Ng Ka Ming

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul

Mr. Wei Jianan

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Foo Chi Ming

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Mak Mei Kuen

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Chan Yan Tak
Ms. Mak Mei Kuen

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul (Chairman)
Professor Ng Ka Ming

Mr. WEI Jianan

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wei Jianan (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul

Professor Ng Ka Ming

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wei Jianan (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul

Professor Ng Ka Ming

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
CCIF CPA Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Chong Hing Bank Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
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THE CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road

PO Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110, Cayman Islands

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

21/F., Man Shing Industrial Building

307-311 Castle Peak Road

Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER AGENT

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
WAG Worldsec Corporate Finance Limited

STOCK CODE
8185

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.royalmedic.com

(the contents of which do not form part of this report)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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HIGHLIGHTS e
For the year ended 31 March
BEZA=+T—HILHE
2014 2013
—F N R =4 %
HK$°000 HK$’000 Change
Tl it )
Operations ¥
Turnover e x| 169,684 163,767 3.6%
Gross profit EH] 129,992 129,010 0.8%
EBIT (Note 1) EBIT (Fff5E1) 551 46,594 -98.8%
Adjusted EBIT (Note 2) SR HE EBIT (MfE2) 31,285 45914 -31.9%
(Loss)/profit for the year N (kR i F (5,733) 39,264 -114.6%
(Loss)/earnings per share B (R18) /BF
Basic and diluted (HK cents) FEA T v (g s Al ) (1.3) 10.2 -112.7%
Notes: P 5
1. EBIT represents earnings before finance costs and taxation. 1. EBIT & 41155 FA 15 A B i 4584 i i 1)
2. Adjusted EBIT represents EBIT before (i) listing expenses of approximately HK$15.4 2. KETRRE EBIT H8411IBR (i) 1 717 B 2 49 15,400,000 # 76 (—

million (2013: HK$1.0 million); (ii) equity-settled share-based payment of approximately
HKS$7.4 million (2013: Nil); (iii) one-off corporate image promotion expenses of
approximately HK$8.0 million (2013: Nil); and (iv) reversal for penalty of approximately

HKS$1.7 million in 2013 (2014: Nil).

Z— ZAF 11,000,000 50) K 5 (i) DA RE &5 B DA
1% 3 A 2 B S A 497,400,000 % 0 (& — AR
) 5 (i) — WA T G BH S 49 8,000,000 #5 7T
(2T — 24 0 F) 5 KGv) A —F— 24 2 B s
#11,700,000 # 7T (U4 + &) o

As at 31 March

W=EH=+—H

2014 2013
SEeWE S %
HK$°000 HK$’000 Change
Tt Tt 28

Financial position B R

Total assets e A 186,589 82,929 125.0%
Shareholders’ equity il 168,131 38,551 336.1%
Net assets value per share (HKS) B A TE (HE ) 0.3 0.1 200.0%
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SHARE INFORMATION

Board lot size

Shares outstanding as at the last trading day of
financial year 2013/2014

Market capitalisation as at the last trading day of
financial year 2013/2014

Closing share price as at the last trading day of
financial year 2013/2014

Earnings/(loss) per share (basic) for financial year
2013/2014:

Interim:
Third Quarterly:
Final:

KEY DATES

Closure of register for 2014
Annual General Meeting
2014 Annual General Meeting
Ex-Dividend Date
Closure of register for 2013/2014 Special Dividend

Dividend Payable Date

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Address 21/F., Man Shing Industrial Building
307-311 Castle Peak Road
Kwai Chung

Telephone (852) 2297 0000

Fax : (852) 27559999

E-mail ir@royalmedic.com.hk

Website www.royalmedic.com

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

4,000 Shares
515,000,000 Shares

HK$1,091,800,000

HK$2.12

HK cents
1.1

(1.3)
(1.3)

1 to 4 August 2014
4 August 2014
6 August 2014

8 August 2014

20 August 2014

Any matters relating to your shareholding, e.g. transfer of Shares, change of name

or address, lost share certificate and dividend warrants, should be sent in writing

to:

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Address Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2980 1333
Fax : o (852) 28108185
E-mail is-enquiries @hk.tricorglobal.com
Website http://www.tricoris.com
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EV L8

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of RM Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), I am reporting to you the first set of annual
results of the Group since its successful listing on the Growth Enterprise Market
(“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2014 increased by 3.6% to
HK$169.7 million (2013: HK$163.8 million). Gross profit margin decreased by 2.2
percentage points to 76.6% (2013: 78.8%).

The Group’s loss attributable to owners for the year ended 31 March 2014
amounted to HK$5.7 million (2013: profit of HK$39.3 million). The significant
change was primarily due to (i) non-recurring expenditures of non-deductible
nature for tax purposes, namely, listing expenses and equity-settled share-based
payments; (ii) non-recurring expenditure, namely, a corporate image promotion
campaign; (iii) increase in staff and directors’ emolument costs; and (iv) increase

in selling and distribution expenses.

SPECIAL DIVIDEND

I am pleased to announce that the Board is recommending a special dividend of
HK$0.04 per ordinary share in respect of 2014 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company at the close of business on 8
August 2014.

DEDICATED FOCUS

Health is the foundation of wealth. Unfortunately, people in Hong Kong are
preoccupied with making a living and tend to neglect their well-being. True to the
“Royal Medic” mission of being the guardian of your health, we have consistently

developed and produced high-quality and high-efficacy health supplements.

6 Annual Report 2013/2014 4

BALBR

ANEMAR M EE AR R (AR
A1) B HCH o W (R T AR ) s S g
] B REH AR SR I 2 A A v 5 58 2 BT A
FRZxw] ([ W32 e 1) A SR (TRIZEAR 1) BT DA
(GECEE Sl

AR R R B

BEZ—VEZH = +—HIFEE > REMN
Wi £ 380 3.6% 2 169,700,000 5 76 ( & — =
163,800,000 ¢ ) » B F i D 2210 H 4 B =
76.6% (" F—Z4F 1 78.8%) °

BE - -E=ZH =+ HIRERE - ALK
A N EAS 518 /5 5,700,000 8 (—F — =

1 71 39,300,000 5 7T) o A B HE R HE A 4 B A ()
SEBLES H A 1 5 8 A 03k i JF 488 MR S 5 AP
T BA ST B AR RESS B AR AR S AT 2 BA S 5 (i) FF
MR Y A EERMEEEE ; Gi) 8 T X
AP BAS G 5 B Giv) B8 Ko 085 B S 1 o

R i S,

A NJRIRE M > #H G RN ZF— AR /A
I\ H 7 S IR TH] 5 R IR 42 311 A ] % SR 4% 1 1) T o
VRAST 2 — DU AP 1) e L 3t S P 5 28 10,0435 T

HLHEE

W (R AR Al AR
AEIGATOF o W T AR o T EE s IR IEA 2 K
WA AL o BRRR [ R R HEEE | ITEE R A
EHH— RV R IRE B A0 PR E 5



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

LOOKING AHEAD

The Directors believe that the successful listing of the Shares of the Company on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 11 October 2013 by way of placing could
enhance the Group’s profile and the net proceeds from the placing will strengthen
the Group’s financial position and enable the Group to implement its business plan.
The Group intends to further strengthen brands recognition of its products among
general public consumers and reinforce the Group’s strong market position in the
health supplements and beauty supplements and products markets in Hong Kong.
The Group also aims to further expand its business operations both in Hong Kong
and overseas. Details of the implementation plan were set out in the prospectus (the
“Prospectus”) of the Company dated 30 September 2013 under the section “Future

Plans and Use of Proceeds”.

In the coming years, we commit to strengthen our competitive advantage for the
purpose of increasing our market shares and collaborating with universities and

also exploring new market successfully.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We wish to express our appreciation to our Shareholders, business partners and
suppliers for their support during the year. We would like to thank our dedicated

staff to their contributions to the success of the Group.

By order of the Board

Chan Yan Tak
Chairman
Hong Kong

24 June 2014
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the business of formulation, marketing, sales
and distribution of health supplements and beauty supplements and products
mainly in Hong Kong and Taiwan. The Group’s products are sold under its
proprietary brands and private label brands specifically developed for the
Distribution Facilitator in Hong Kong and Macau. The Group outsources most of
its production to its suppliers and subcontracting manufacturers and the Group
distributes its products mainly through the Distribution Facilitator. The Group also
operates two Chinese medicine clinics to provide traditional Chinese medicine
treatments, services and retailing of health supplements to the general public
consumers. The Distribution Facilitator remains as the Group’s major customer
during the year ended 31 March 2014, which contributed to approximately 66.8%

of the Group’s total revenue.

The following table sets forth the revenue generated from new products introduced
by the Group during the two years ended 31 March 2014:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

75 1ol JgA

ARSI E BN AT S B WA R AT - eSS
Be 53 G PR E fiy A B R i S E it o AR SR T
FEE ity AR it R 2 S ARG R R i
DR B o AR P LR 0 20 A 1 AP T R
P B O A B T o AR ] E B ) B A Q)
FUE o ARG B IR AR W] S o SR A
HEEIR IR ~ MR R KR 2 R R A o
WE T WUE=A=+HILFE st
PIRIEAE M 2 FHRF - FAGASE B Sk 4R
#166.8% °

TR E " F—EZH = F R R4
JEE A T 4 e R E it M A i

For the year ended 31 March
BEZA=Z+T—HIESRE

2014 2013
e —E-Sk
Number of Number of

new products

new products

introduced Revenue introduced Revenue
7 48 BT A LR
E i B Wtz EE i W W fi
HK$’000 HK$°000
R T kT
Health supplements: PRI i -
Proprietary brands HUA R 9 4,474 5 6,189
Private label brands H %5 4 3,724 14 3,020
13 8,198 19 9,209
Beauty supplements and products: A b S
Proprietary brands HUR 12,572 2,664
Private label brands HZF 1 224 3 10,382
3 12,796 7 13,046
Total At 16 20,994 26 22,255
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group sold and distributed 30 (2013: 21) health
supplements and 9 (2013: 10) beauty supplements and products under its
proprietary brands. The Group also sold and distributed 39 (2013: 36) health
supplements and 6 (2013: 8) beauty supplements and products under the

Distribution Facilitator’s private label brands.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group reported a net loss of approximately HK$5.7 million for the year
against a profit of approximately HK$39.3 million for the previous year. EBIT of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$0.6 million for the year, against an
EBIT of approximately HK$46.6 million for previous year; while the adjusted
EBIT decreased from approximately HK$45.9 million to HK$31.3 million as

follows:

o PR ) w5240 AT

W oE—AEZH =+ —H > AN E Y L8
305K (2013 = 213 ) B A & M AR A B ok
(2013 = 103K) ZEA fi B35 2540 oy S 78 - I B %
KA 85393 (2013 = 363K 43 S5 ALY 8 &K i
{7 i K 63K (2013 = 83K 4 S5 AR EL A B &
i S 254 ity B i o

o %5 Inl g

A > A ] A5 15 1 49 5,700,000 # G -
M 25 4F HI) B 4535 1 49 39,300,000 95 70 o AR 4F BE A
4E 9] 1) EBIT $ 4 600,000 #5 7T » B 45 4F LB EBIT
# 49 46,600,000 %5 JC 5 17 48§ B EBIT H & 4F 4
45,900,000 #5 70 I8 > 2 A4 JE # 31,300,000 #5 7T
WRPIR

2014 2013

e S UK R
HK$’000 HK$°000 % change
T#IT T 58
EBIT EBIT 551 46,594 —98.8%

Adjusted for significant one-off expenses/ HRALER 2 BRI
(income) of the Group as follows: B (I A) Z AT

Listing expenses il b 15,370 996 1,443.2%
Equity-settled share-based payments DL AEAS B D A S Ak 2 B 32 7,364 - N/A
Reversal for penalty A - (1,676) -100.0%
One-off corporate image promotion expenses — URMEAS ZE T G4 i B S 8,000 - N/A
Adjusted EBIT 3 EBIT 31,285 45914 -31.9%
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Revenue — Business segments
The following table sets forth the breakdown of the Group’s revenue by business

segments for the two years ended 31 March 2014:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Weds — SEHE S HE
TREIIME —F—WEZA =+ —H ILWEE
R 35 53 WO 153 A S B 2 Y 43T

For the year ended 31 March
BRE=A=1—HILEE

2014 2013
TR et
% of total % of total
HK$000 revenue HK$’000 revenue
Al B2 i AR A
T#T A4k THIT Aokt
Business segments B i
Health supplements PRAZE ) 131,796 77.7% 120,082 73.3%
Beauty supplements and products FEZA ity S iy 37,032 21.8% 42,840 26.2%
Others HoAte 856 0.5% 845 0.5%
Total i 169,684 100.0% 163,767 100.0%

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately HK$5.9 million or 3.6% from
approximately HK$163.8 million to HK$169.7 million for the two years ended 31
March 2014, which was the net effect of an increase in sales of health supplements
and a decrease in sales in beauty supplements and products. The Group’s revenue
attributable to health supplements increased by approximately HK$11.7 million or
9.7% from approximately HK$120.1 million to HK$131.8 million, while revenue
attributable to beauty supplements and products decreased by approximately
HK$5.8 million or 13.6% from approximately HK$42.8 million to HK$37.0
million for the two years ended 31 March 2014.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group’s top 5 best-selling products were
Royal Medic No.l Chinese CS-4, La Gusto Slim Coffee, Melty Enzyme, Royal
Medic Liver Guard and RM Broken Ganoderma Spore, which in aggregate
contributed to approximately HK$83.2 million or 49.0% of the Group’s total

revenue.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group’s top 5 best-selling products were
Royal Medic No.l Chinese Cs-4, La Gusto Slim Coffee, Kiwi Lab Magic Mix,
Royal Medic Liver Guard and RM Broken Ganoderma Spore, which in aggregate
contributed to approximately HK$92.5 million or 56.5% of the Group’s total

revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Proprietary brands health supplements

The Group’s revenue attributable to proprietary brands health supplements
decreased by approximately HK$0.9 million or 0.9% from approximately
HK$105.2 million to HK$104.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 as

compared with the same period of last year.

Private label brands health supplements

The revenue attributable to private label brands health supplements increased by
approximately HK$12.6 million or 84.6% from approximately HK$14.9 million to
HK$27.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 as compared with the same
period of last year. The increase in revenue attributable to private label brands was
primarily due to the expansion of the product range and increase in the number of
Health Proof special designated counters (“SDC”), which primarily sold health

supplements.

Proprietary brands beauty supplements and products

Revenue attributable to proprietary brands beauty supplements and products
increased by approximately HK$1.1 million or 4.0% from approximately HK$27.2
million to HK$28.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 as compared with

the same period of last year.

Private label brands beauty supplements and products

The revenue attributable to private label brands beauty supplements and products
decreased by approximately HK$6.8 million or 43.6% from approximately
HK$15.6 million to HK$8.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 as
compared with the same period of last year. The decrease is primarily due to the
Group focusing resources on marketing and launching of Health Proof products,

which are primarily health supplements.
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Revenue — Sales and distribution
The following table sets forth the breakdown of the Group’s revenue by
distribution channels for the two years ended 31 March 2014:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

e dh — 88 Koy 8
TREIIME —F—WEZA =+ —H ILWEE
R 43 B8 A6 153 A 4 B L2 Y 43T

For the year ended 31 March
BEZA=Z4T—HIESE

2014 2013
— — =
% of total % of total
HK$°000 revenue HKS$’000 revenue
A B 2R 15 Al Ak
T AT THsTT Ao
Shelves in the Distribution AT EHACHRIE &
Facilitator’s stores =g 113,336 66.8% 116,957 71.4%
SDCs located in the Distribution T S AR EEE B 1
Facilitator’s stores I 4R A7 42,304 24.9% 35,140 21.5%
Hong Kong Brands and Products Expo 7 i T J& & 10,103 6.0% 10,008 6.1%
Other distribution channels (Note 1) At /> 854248 (Btat—) 3,085 1.8% 817 0.5%
Others (Note 2) Hopth (BftE—) 856 0.5% 845 0.5%
Total a5l 169,684 100.0% 163,767 100.0%
Note 1: “Other distribution channels” includes a distribution facilitator in Taiwan, the Wisdom Club, BifaE— o [ HABS 850 | B A8 2 e BER
wholesalers, and Royal Medic Chinese Medicine Clinics. s LEE R S A P T A o
Note 2: “Others” mainly includes service income generated by Royal Medic Chinese Medicine  BffaE— © [ JHCAth | =2 260 455 i 1 22 4 op B oh 327 2 IR I
Clinics. A o
As at 31 March 2014, the Group had 15 (2013: 15) Royal Medic SDCs and 13~ W _ZF—WHE=H =+—H » A @A 585

(2013: 10) Health Proof SDCs in the Distribution Facilitator’s stores in Hong
Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B 2L i i B 53 A

Revenue — Geographical segments Wets — HblE 4
The following table sets forth the breakdown of the Group’s revenue by geographic [ £ #F#E —F—V4E=H =+—H Ik @l 4
segments for the two years ended 31 March 2014: 2 i 3 S ) 73 A AR R AU 2 ) 20 AT

For the year ended 31 March
BEZA=Z1T—HIESE

2014 2013
e St fo2 et

% of total % of total

HK$°000 revenue HKS$’000 revenue

A B 25 A A g

T AT THsIT Bl

Hong Kong Tk 167,631 98.8% 163,767 100.0%

Taiwan B 2,053 1.2% — 0.0%

Total My 169,684 100.0% 163,767 100.0%
Cost of sales B AR

The Group’s cost of sales primarily comprises of cost of raw material and 745 [F (1 88 W7 32 B AL HE TR A R K2 0258 9 6
packaging materials, labour costs related to production and/or packaging of the 7 ~ BLA:z B [ 8l fi0 256 74 48 [ 2 5 A B 09 2%
Group’s products, write down of inventories, provision for goods return and 7 ~ fEEHH ~ B B S0 BUR 0AE E RUAR o

subcontracting or contract manufacturing costs.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin
The following table sets forth the breakdown of the Group’s gross profit and gross
profit margin by operating segments for the two years ended 31 March 2014:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R BFIR
TREIIME —F—WEZA =+ —H ILWEE
BEHASE 0y W B 53 AR BB B BRI 507 -

For the year ended 31 March
BEZA=Z4T—HIESE

2014 2013
ZER—E e
HK$°000 % HK$°000 %
Tt THsoT
Health supplements: PRAGE i
Proprietary brands B 81,780 78.4% 83,749 79.6%
Private label brands H % 23,347 84.9% 12,843 86.1%
105,127 79.8% 96,592 80.4%
Beauty supplements and products: Tl b SR
Proprietary brands A 18,326 64.8% 20,051 73.7%
Private label brands HZF 6,023 68.8% 11,909 76.2%
24,349 65.8% 31,960 T4.6%
Others HoAth 516 60.2% 458 54.2%
Total st 129,992 76.6% 129,010 78.8%

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2014 was approximately HK$130.0
million, representing an increase of approximately 0.8% as compared with that for
the corresponding period in 2013. The gross profit margin of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2014 was approximately 76.6%, representing a decrease of
approximately 2.2 percentage points from approximately 78.8% as compared with

the corresponding period in 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses principally consist of (i) advertising
and promotion expenses for advertisements through various channels including TV
media, printed media, outdoor advertising and digital media as well as engagement
of artistes to endorse the Group’s products as brand ambassadors; (ii) commission
paid to sales promoters; and (iii) exhibition expenses. The following table sets
forth a breakdown of the major items of the Group’s selling and distribution

expenses for the two years ended 31 March 2014:

o PR ) w5240 AT

58 T4y 83 B 52

AL B 8 8 Koy B BR S R EALAS () B R TR A
B~ EORIIERE - AN TR T A T
R B i B S DA T Z W R A S AT A [ i 1Y
IR SRR AE 5 G HERS B RISl 5 K dil)
HER S . PRBHHE F-NE=H=14—
F ol 9 1081 47 o A A 1 8 B 2 o 1 BR S a0 A

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—HILEE

2014 2013
e S Ui TS

HK$’000 % HK$’000 %

T Bt E 4 b AREP JHAE T 4 L

Advertising and promotion expenses ‘& {8 5% ¥k 7% B =2 33,507 69.2% 25,442 66.9%
Commission charges R 11,579 23.9% 9,737 25.6%
Exhibition expenses JEE 51 BH 2 1,547 3.2% 1,354 3.6%
Others HoAhy 1,802 3.7% 1,485 3.9%
Total sl 48,435 100.0% 38,018 100.0%

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
HK$10.4 million or 27.4% from approximately HK$38.0 million to HK$48.4
million for the two years ended 31 March 2014. It was primarily attributable to (i)
the launch of marketing campaigns to promote corporate image in both Hong Kong
and Taiwan and (ii) the increase in commission expenses as a result of the increase
in sales generated by promoters while the average commission rate remained
stable.

The Group spent approximately HK$8.0 million on a one-off marketing campaign
to promote the Group’s corporate image in Hong Kong during the year ended 31
March 2014.

BEE-WEZH =+ —HIEWMERE > A%
] 1) B K40 8 B 52 F 44938,000,000 7 53 i 44
10,400,000 # JC % 48,400,000 JC - 3 1§ 5
27.4% ° A BRI TG T iR @) HE S
HEREA RN B R B2 SETAR 5 2 Gi) 8
B 88 38 SO 6 B Sz BT > T i
B R TEE o

WE B -VEZH = —HIFEE - AZEH
T 498,000,000 35 TOAHE H — UCPE B (TG B DA 2
A FZ AR
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Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses mainly consist of salaries and staff related costs for
administrative personnel (including the Directors), rent for SDCs, consultancy fees,
traveling and entertainment expenses and research and development costs. The

following table sets forth a breakdown for the major items of the Group’s

administrative expenses for the two years ended 31 March 2014:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FTBLB

BB SO E AT

B S T RAETE AR (BFES) e X
B TARBR A ~ Rl 46 e Oz A - R 2 - 2
Jife B P I B S DA BT B AR AS o R R E =%
— VA=A = B R WA AR AR Y T AT

For the year ended 31 March
MEZA=Z4T—HIEEE

2014 2013
—EF A e

HK$’000 % HK$°000 %

THoT FiAkE 4 b T FrihEAS

Salaries Ha 24,489 40.2% 21,522 48.1%

Rent for SDCs I A R 6 R 4 16,098 26.4% 13,113 29.3%

Directors’ emoluments 4 4,136 6.8% 780 1.7%
Mandatory provident fund and SR AR A S A

other staff benefits B TA&F 1,975 32% 1,884 4.2%

Research and development costs B8 A 2,018 33% 2,074 4.6%

Legal and professional fees RIS E & X 2,619 4.3% 647 1.4%

Reversal for penalty HiEer ) = = (1,676) -3.7%

Others FHoAth 9,647 15.8% 6,395 14.4%

Total sl 60,982 100% 44,739 100%

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$16.3 million
or 36.5% from approximately HK$44.7 million to HK$61.0 million for the two
years ended 31 March 2014. It was primarily attributable to increased Directors’

emolument and salaries costs, rental expense and legal and professional fees.

16  Annual Report 2013/2014 4

HEF-WE=A=+—HILWMERE - AR4E
B9 47 B BE 32 B £944,700,000 3 T B &)
16,300,000 # 7T % 61,000,000 # 7T > 1 18 36.5% -

T A N RO B AR - A B S R
2 BT ek -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Listing expenses
The Group incurred listing expenses of approximately HK$15.4 million for the
year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$1.0 million).

Equity-settled share-based payments
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group recognised a total expense of
approximately HK$7.4 million in relation to the Share Options granted by the

Company to directors and employees.

Profit before taxation

The Group’s profit before taxation decreased from approximately HK$46.5 million
to HK$0.4 million for the two years ended 31 March 2014. The decrease was
mainly due to (i) listing expenses and other related charges of approximately
HK$15.4 million; (ii) increase in directors’ emoluments and employees salary
costs for improving internal control; (iii) equity-settled share-based payment in
respect of the Share Options granted by the Company of approximately HK$7.4
million and (iv) one-off marketing campaign of approximately HK$8.0 million to
promote the Group’s corporate image in Hong Kong; incurred during the year
ended 31 March 2014.

Taxation

Taxation for the year ended 31 March 2014 was approximately HK$6.2 million
(2013: HK$7.2 million). The tax effects on (i) non-deductible expenses and (ii) tax
losses not recognised, have contributed to the extent of taxation incurred in the

year under review.

Loss/(profit) for the year

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$5.7 million during the year ended 31 March 2014, as compared with a net
profit of approximately HK$39.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2013.

o PR ) w5240 AT

L%
BEF-THE=HA=+—H1L4EE - AEHK
O #15400,0008 T ( — F — =
1,000,000 # 7T) -

VLB HE 45 S DL Ay 32 A Z B X
BEZ—WEZH=+—HIMEE » AR4EEHE
FOAH BRI R A B T S R B 0 I R 1 B
HEEA 7,400,000 5 G ©

I o i i
BEZ—WEZHA =+ —HIEmEERE > A%
I (14 3% 54 i 2 R PR 4 46,500,000 #5 5 36 2 400,000
WG o WD T EE R () b T B ST R H At B T
F % 15,400,000 15 7T 5 (i) B HM 4 K B T #
S LA E B (i) T BORE RT3 A DL RE % 5 DA
JBE 00 32 A5h 2 B S 0 4 F #0°7,400,000 95 G 5 B (iv)
ASE T 498,000,000 5 TTHE H— U2 B B
DI Al s 2 AR AR TR -

FLIH
BWE_F—WFE=H =T —HILFE > REEHM
B JH #7 6,200,000 #% 56 (- F — =4F © 7,200,000 %
JC) o (i) A AT FORE BA S2 R (i) oA e Rl TE s 48 9 B
T B > AL BUTE 35 B AR BE Y B TE B 2 o

EN R ()

HR P E R FNFEEREEE e =
= —H R4 545,700,000 % 0 o 1 2% 4F 7] 1]
I B 15 735 1) 5 49 39,300,000 35 T
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Inventories

The inventories increased by approximately HK$4.7 million or 36.7% from
approximately HK$12.8 million to HK$17.5 million, as at 31 March 2013 and 2014,
respectively. The Group’s total inventory turnover days increased from 125 days to
139 days for the two years ended 31 March 2014. The increase was primarily due to
the increase in inventory level of raw materials and finished goods to cater for the
special promotion event scheduled in April 2014 and increase in inventory level of

finished goods for the Taiwan market.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables decreased by approximately HK$6.8 million or 20.9%
from approximately HK$32.6 million to HK$25.8 million as at 31 March 2013 and
2014. Of which, trade receivables decreased by approximately HK$6.8 million or
28.2% from approximately HK$24.1 million to HK$17.3 million as at 31 March
2013 and 2014. The Group’s total receivable turnover days decreased from 52 days
to 45 days for the two years ended 31 March 2014.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables increased by approximately HK$0.6 million or 4.5%
from approximately HK$13.2 million to HK$13.8 million as at 31 March 2013 and
2014. Of which, trade payables increased by approximately HK$1.0 million or
33.3% from approximately HK$3.0 million to HK$4.0 million as at 31 March 2013
and 2014. The Group’s total payables turnover days decreased from 38 days to 32
days for the two years ended 31 March 2014.

Disclaimer

Save for Royal Medic No.1 Chinese Cs-4, none of the Group’s products is
registered under the Pharmacy and Poison Ordinance (Chapter 138, the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Chinese Medicine Ordinance. Any claim made for those
products has not been subject to evaluation for such registration. Those products

are not intended to diagnose, treat or prevent any disease.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL POSITION AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 March 2014, cash and bank balances of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$123.3 million (2013: HK$15.7 million) and the current ratio
(current assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group was 9.3 times as at 31
March 2014 (2013: 1.5 times). The Group’s gearing ratio, representing total
borrowings divided by total equity, was approximately 1.8% as at 31 March 2014
(2013: 9.2%). In view of the Group’s current level of cash and bank balances,
funds generated internally from operations and the unutilised banking facilities
available, the Board is confident that the Group will have sufficient resources to
meet its financial needs for its operations. As at 31 March 2014, the Group has
unutilised general banking facilities of approximately HK$12.9 million (2013:
HKS$15.1 million).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives in managing capital are to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the
owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The management
reviews the capital structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well
as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt as it sees fit and
appropriate. The Group also monitors capital on the basis of the net gearing ratio.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had 173 (2013:130) employees. For the year
ended 31 March 2014, staff cost including directors’ remuneration was
approximately HK$52.7 million (2013: HK$36.8 million).

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group’s Directors and senior management receive compensation in the form
of salaries, benefits in kind and discretionary bonuses with reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and the performance of the
Group. The Group also reimburses them for expenses, which are necessarily and
reasonably incurred for the provision of services to the Group or executing their
functions in relation to the operations of the Group. The Group regularly reviews
and determines the remuneration and compensation package of the Group’s
Directors and senior management, by reference to, among other things, market
level of salaries paid by comparable companies, the respective responsibilities of

the Group’s Directors and the performance of the Group.
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OUTLOOK

The Directors believe that the successful listing of the Shares of the Company on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 11 October 2013 by way of placing could
enhance the Group’s profile and the net proceeds from the placing will strengthen
the Group’s financial position and enable the Group to implement its business plan.
The Group intends to further strengthen brands recognition of its products among
general public consumers and reinforce the Group’s strong market position in the
health supplements and beauty supplements and products markets in Hong Kong.
The Group also aims to further expand its business operations both in Hong Kong
and overseas. Details of the implementation plan were set out in the Prospectus of
the Company dated 30 September 2013 under the section “Future Plans and Use of

Proceeds”.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

There was no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associated

companies and joint ventures during the year ended 31 March 2014.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2013 and 2014, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
As at 31 March 2013 and 2014, the Group did not have significant capital

commitment.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through purchases that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they related. The currency giving rise to this risk are primarily United States
dollars, the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations is insignificant as the
Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has secured bank loans of approximately HK$2.9
million (2013: HK$3.5 million). The banking facilities are secured by the Group’s
land and buildings, having carrying amount of approximately HK$6.1 million as at
31 March 2014 (2013: HK$6.3 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B 2L i i B 53 A

BUSINESS OBJECTIVES AND USE OF PROCEEDS 0 HEE R E &

Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual Business Progress SEW5 H B BB B SR R A LU
An analysis comparing the business objectives as stated in the Prospectus with i 65 S5 P i 41 S5 H A LA SR [ i B — =4
the Group’s actual business progress for the period from 1 October 2013 to 31 A—HZE "F—NE=HA=+—HI-MFEHE
March 2014 is set out below: B JE 1 L A AT g g R

Business objectives for the period Actual business progress up to 31 March 2014

from 1 October 2013 to 31 March 2014
as stated in the Prospectus

BRI ZE-=Z2FT ] HEDE | HEZZ-WEEA=1T D EEREER
—MAE=H =4 H LR R H AR

Expansion of distribution network

. Set up 3 to 5 new SDCs . Set up one new Health Proof SDC in the Distribution Facilitator’s stores in
Hong Kong.

. Employ more promoters . Number of promoters increased by 26 for the six months ended 31 March
2014.

K I FR A

. HEFA 3 25 R I8 E AL . 55385 QIR 1% 75 o T 404 1 R R I 48 A

. IEYIDEEA =] . WEZE-WE=A=+—HNMEAR > MBI AN T 264 -

Collaboration with CUCAMed Company Limited,
wholly-owned subsidiary of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong Foundation Limited, to

develop products

. Launch new health supplements under the | ¢ Launched one health supplement under the “LEGEND” brand.
“LEGEND” brand . Developed three health supplements under the “LEGEND” brand.

. Engage brand ambassadors to promote | © Negotiated the engagement of a brand ambassador to promote the products
products under the “LEGEND” brand. The contract was executed in early April 2014,

. Strengthen branding and marketing through | Promoted the product under the “LEGEND” brand through print media.

various media channels . Co-ordinated a press interview with CUCAMed Company Limited. The
interview was carried out and print media coverage was published in April
2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Expanding overseas markets

. Engage brand ambassadors in Taiwan
. Recruit more promoters in Taiwan
. Strengthen branding and marketing through

various media channels in Taiwan

AN Ty
. W i BRI ROR
o RBEHEEHENR

o MERASEEEAE G A o R R T 85 A R
L

Continued the engagement of two brand ambassadors who are well-known
amongst the Taiwanese consumers to promote the Group’s products in
Taiwan.

Recruited promoters who will be stationed at the selected stores of the
distribution facilitator in Taiwan to promote and sell the Group’s products
directly to the general public consumers in Taiwan. As at 31 March 2014, the
Group had 19 promoters in Taiwan.

Promoted the Group’s products and corporate image through various media

and channels, such as television commercials and print media in Taiwan.
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Enhancing the Group’s marketing and promotion

activities in Hong Kong

. Continue to engage brand ambassadors in
Hong Kong

. Strengthen branding and marketing through

various media channels in Hong Kong

. Engage a reputable university to conduct

preliminary clinical trials
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Continued the engagement of brand ambassadors to promote the Group’s
products in Hong Kong.

Promoted the Group’s products and corporate image through various media
and channels, such as television commercials and printed media, in
Hong Kong.

Started the negotiation with a Hong Kong based university to conduct

preliminary clinical trials on the Group’s products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The business objectives and planned use of proceeds as stated in the Prospectus
were based on the best estimation of future market conditions and Development
made by the Group at the time of preparing the Prospectus while the proceeds were
applied in accordance with the actual development of the market. During the period
from 1 October 2013 to 31 March 2014, the net proceeds from issuance of new

shares of the Company by way of placing had been applied as follows:

o PR ) w5240 AT
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Planned use

of proceeds as
stated in the Actual use
Prospectus of proceeds
from the from the

Total use of 1 October 2013to 1 October 2013 to
net proceeds 31 March 2014 31 March 2014
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Expansion of distribution network KA Bl A AR 5,950 1,000 -
Collaboration with CUCAMed Company B R R R A RA
Limited to develop products A VEREEE M 47,600 5,250 -
Expanding overseas markets YN 41,650 8,097 271
Enhancing the Group’s marketing and IR A B A 7 Y T 355 0 B
promotion activities in Hong Kong e £ 5 B 13,090 4321 4321
Working capital and general — e g e
corporate purposes — A2 A 10,710 2,500 2,500
119,000 21,168 7,092
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The Group may face challenges in implementing its statement of
business objectives

The success of the Group’s operations depends on, among other things, the proper
and timely execution of the Group’s future business plans. The Group’s future
business strategies are described in the paragraph headed “Implementation Plan”
under section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The
Group endeavours to achieve its business objectives and adopts the business
strategies in accordance with the schedule set out in the paragraph headed
“Implementation plan” in the same section. The respective scheduled completion
times are based on certain bases and assumptions as set out in the paragraph
headed “Bases and Assumptions” in the same section. These bases and assumptions
are inherently subject to many uncertainties and unpredictable factors, in particular
the risk factors as set out under the section headed “Risk Factors” in the
Prospectus. Therefore, there is no assurance that the Group’s business plans will
materialise in accordance with the estimated time frame and that the Group’s future

plans will be accomplished at all.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Yan Tak (BE ), aged 45, is the chairman of the Board and a chief
executive officer as well as a director of most subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Chan joined the Group in 2003 and was appointed as a director of the Company on
5 December 2011. Mr. Chan is responsible for the overall management and
strategic development of the Group. Mr. Chan possesses over 10 years of
experience in the health food and pharmaceutical trading businesses with extensive
experience in product development, materials sourcing, branding-building,
advertising, marketing and retail networking. Mr. Chan has acted as the honorary
president of the Federation of Beauty Industry (H.K.). He has been a member of
the Association of Hong Kong and Kowloon Practitioners of Chinese Medicine
Limited (#5 JL " % fifi /4 €) since 2004 and was appointed as the advisor of the

abovementioned association in 2008.

Mr. Chan is currently a director of Able Island Group Limited (“Able Island”),
which holds 385,400,000 shares of the Company, representing 74.93% to total
issued share capital of the Company, details of which are disclosed in the report of

the directors under this report.

Mr. Chan has entered into a service contract with the Company for three years till
10 October 2016 but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the provision of The Company’s Articles of Association and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”).

Mr. Wong Mau Tai (# %78 ), aged 60, is an executive Director of our Company as
well as a Director of most subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong joined the Group in
2009 and was appointed as a Director of the Company on 5 December 2011. Mr.
Wong graduated from the Griffin College of Washington in the United States of
America with a bachelor degree in business administration. He was the general
manager of the Group from July 2009 to October 2011, mainly responsible for the
production, packaging and logistic functions of the Group. He possesses more than 17
years of working experience in various business segments ranging from
telecommunication, transportation to property development industry. Mr. Wong has
strong knowledge in the health food and pharmaceutical trading business segment. Mr.
Wong served as the manager of New World Development Company Limited and New
World China Land Limited and engaged as the assistant to director and general

manager of New World First Bus Services (China) Limited.

Mr. Wong has entered into a service contract with the Company for three years till 10
October 2016 but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the provision of the

Company’s Articles of Association and the GEM Listing Rules.
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AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Foo Chi Ming ({67 1), aged 49, is an executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Foo joined the Company as a non-executive Director on 16 August 2012 and was re-
designated as an executive director on 16 July 2013. Mr. Foo was awarded a
professional diploma in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong and a
bachelor degree of Arts in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr.
Foo is an experienced business executive with more than 15 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and financial consulting industries. Mr. Foo takes on the
responsibilities of overseeing the financial strategy of the Group and assists Mr. Chan,
the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer, to oversee the corporate strategy
of the Group. Mr. Foo is currently the compliance officer of the Company under GEM
Rule 5.19. Mr. Foo is also a director and chief financial officer of Green Salt
Management Limited and a director and financial controller of Qinghai Salt Industry
Co., Limited ( #5155 4 S /% 54 BR /2 ] ). Mr. Foo worked for the audit department
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and worked as an associate director of Deloitte & Touche
Corporate Finance Limited, focusing on mergers and acquisitions and capital raising

transaction activities.

Mr. Foo has entered into a service contract with the Company for three years till 10
October 2016 but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the provision of our

Company’s Articles of Association and the GEM Listing Rules.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Madam Tsang Pui Man (% il52), aged 44, is a non-executive Director of the
Company. Madam Tsang was appointed as a director of the Company on 5
December 2011. Madam Tsang obtained a diploma in management studies
awarded jointly by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the Hong Kong
Management Association. Madam Tsang worked as the assistant manager of Sing
Tao Club Limited. Madam Tsang is responsible for assisting Mr. Chan, the
chairman of our Board and chief executive officer, in formulating strategies for
human resource functions and financial management. Madam Tsang is the spouse
of Mr. Chan, the chairman of our Board and chief executive officer, therefore, she
has been deemed as the controlling shareholder of the Company and is currently a
director of Able Island, which holds 385,400,000 shares of the Company,
representing 74.93% to total issued share capital of the Company, details of which

are disclosed in the report of the directors under this report.

Madam Tsang has entered into a service contract with the Company for two years
till 10 October 2015 but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the

provision of our Company’s Articles of Association and the GEM Listing Rules.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wei Jianan (ZH#9), aged 75, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 24 September 2013. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee and remuneration committee and a member of audit committee
of our Company. Mr. Wei is an experienced business executive with more than 20
years of experience in the retail trading business, which covers the pharmaceutical,
garment and household products across the regions in Hong Kong, the PRC, Europe
and the United States of America. Mr. Wei has served as a director of Chinese Arts &
Craft (HK) Limited and China Resources (Holdings) Limited. Mr. Wei graduated from
Beijing International Business College (At 5t 341 5 £ B ), the predecessor of the
University of International Business and Economics (¥ 7N 7% 5 K £ ) in 1965.
Mr. Wei has entered into a service contract with the Company for two years till 10
October 2015 but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the provision of our Company’s Articles of Association and the GEM Listing
Rules.

Professor Ng Ka Ming (53 44 ), aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 24 September 2013. He is also a member of
audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. He obtained his bachelor degree in chemical engineering from the
University of Minnesota and the degree of doctor of philosophy from the
University of Houston. He is currently the chair professor of chemical and
biomolecular engineering department at The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology (“HKUST”). He served as professor of chemical engineering
department of the University of Massachusetts, Amherst. He joined HKUST and
has been seconded to Nano and Advanced Materials Institute Limited by HKUST
and held the position of chief executive office. Professor Ng has held visiting
positions at DuPont Central Research and Development Experimental Station of
E.L. du Pont de Nemours and Company and the National University of Singapore.
He has served as a corporate science and technology advisor of Mitsubishi
Chemical Corporation. Professor Ng received the Excellence in Process
Development Research Award from the American Institute of Chemical Engineers
in 2002 and subsequently elected as a Fellow of American Institute of Chemical

Engineers in 2003.

Professor Ng has entered into a service contract with the Company for two years
till 10 October 2015 but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the provision of our Company’s Articles of Association and the
GEM Listing Rules.
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Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul (¥ [% 5% ), aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 24 September 2013. He is currently the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng has over 30 years of experience in
the accounting and finance disciplines. Mr. Cheng joined Leach & Co., Chartered
Accountants, of London, United Kingdom in 1972, and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1976. He became a partner of the firm in 1978 and retired from the
partnership in 1992. Mr. Cheng acted as a board director and deputy president of
Mitsubishi UFJ Securities (HK) Holdings, Limited (‘MUHKH”), and held these
positions until his retirement from MUHKH in December 2012. Mr. Cheng is Fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and a member of the
Audit Profession Reform Working Group of the HKICPA and a member of the
Membership Committee of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. Mr.
Cheng is an independent non-executive director of Forterra Real Estate Pte. Ltd.,
which is a trustee manager of Forterra Trust, a Singapore-based business trust that is
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. Mr. Cheng is also an
independent non-executive director of Xinyi Solar Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 968) and Kin Yat Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 638).

Mr. Cheng has entered into a service contract with the Company for two years till
10 October 2015 but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the provision of our Company’s Articles of Association and the
GEM Listing Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yan Tat Ming (%), aged 50, is the chief production officer of the
Group. Mr. Yan joined the Group in January 2012. He is primarily responsible for
the production and quality assurance functions of the Group. Mr. Yan has more
than 12 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. He is experienced in
the areas of production and quality assurance and familiar with production with
GMP standard.

Mr. Yan obtained his bachelor’s degree in pharmacy from Robert Gordon Institute
of Technology Aberdeen in 1991. He is registered as a pharmaceutical chemist and
is a member of the Royal Pharmaceutical Society of Great Britain since 1992. He
is also admitted as a pharmacist in accordance to the Pharmacy and Poisons
Ordinance (Chapter 138, the Laws of Hong Kong) in 1992. Mr. Yan was elected as
the committee member and deputy secretary-general of the Hong Kong Chinese

Prepared Medicine Traders Association in 2004 and 2006, respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Mak Mei Kuen (Z3€8H), aged 37, is the chief financial officer of the Group.
Ms. Mak joined the Group in November 2011 and is primarily responsible for
supervising the financial reporting, corporate finance, treasury, tax and other

finance related matters of the Group.

Ms. Mak has over 13 years of experience in accounting and financial management.
Ms. Mak received a bachelor degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 1998. She is a member of the HKICPA. She is also a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong
Institute of Company Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and

Administrators.

Ms. Wong Chui Lan ( E323 ), aged 42, is the sales controller of the Group. Ms.
Wong is responsible for sales department including the supervision of the sales
promoter team of the Group and also acts as the person-in-charge of the customer
services and member club functions of the Group. She joined the Group in 2004 as
a senior manager and was subsequently promoted to the deputy general manager in
2010 and sales controller in 2011.

Ms. Wong possesses more than eight years of working experience in the retail
marketing specialising in selling and distribution of PCM health supplements and

beauty supplements and products.

Ms. Lau Pak Chee (@H‘H%), aged 42, is the senior business manager of our
Group. Ms. Lau joined the Group in February 2014. She is primarily responsible
for the marketing and brand management of the various products of our Group
under “LEGEND” brand. Ms. Lau possess more than 14 years of working
experience in brand marketing, category management and retailing and specialising
in the health and beauty sector. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Lau worked as
Business Manager in The Dairy Farm Company Limited from May 2011 to
February 2014.

Ms. Lau obtained her bachelor’s degree in Pharmacy from University of Toronto
in 1994. Ms. Lau is a registered pharmacist in accordance to the Pharmacy and

Poisons Ordinance (Chapter 138, the Laws of Hong Kong) since 1996.

Ms. Chow Wing Shan (J&#kH), aged 40, is the marketing controller of the
Group. Ms. Chow joined the Group in August 2012. She is primarily responsible
for the marketing and brand management of the various products of the Group. Ms.

Chow has approximately 14 years of experience in marketing and sales.

Ms. Chow obtained a bachelor degree in business administration in marketing

awarded by the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 1996.
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Ms. Yuen Yee Han (JEZT1H), aged 53, is the administration controller of the
Group. Ms. Yuen is responsible for the human resources management,
administrative function, products compliance, production and logistics aspects of
the Group.

Ms. Yuen possesses more than 20 years of working experience in the retail and
trading businesses specialising in the human resources, administration, training and
public relations and customer services aspects. She holds a diploma on foreign
trade awarded by the University of Foreign Economic and Trade in Beijing, PRC,
in 1996.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Foo Chi Ming ({5 1), aged 49, is the compliance officer of the Company.
Please refer to the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” in this section for
further details.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR

The Directors herein present their report and the audited consolidated financial

statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the business of formulation, marketing, sales
and distribution of health supplements and beauty supplements and products
mainly in Hong Kong. There was no significant change in nature of the Group’s

principal activities during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March 2014 by

segments is set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014 are set out in

note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2014
are set out in notes 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2014, the results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2014 and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are

set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 64.

No final dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company for the years ended
31 March 2014 and 2013.

Prior to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) to rationalise the structure of the
Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange, Wisdom Come Medical Group Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, had declared dividend in an amount of HK$40,000,000 to its then
shareholders during the year ended 31 March 2013.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Directors recommend the
payment of a special dividend for the year ended 31 March of 2014 of HK$0.04
per ordinary share to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”)
whose names appear on the register of members on Friday, 8§ August 2014,
amounting to HK$20,600,000, subject to approval by the Shareholders in the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Monday, 4 August 2014.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the past 3
financial years is set out on page 156 of this annual report. This summary does not

form part of the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the

year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Details of Share Options of the Company are set out under the section headed
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME”, “DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES?” to this annual report and in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION AND SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 March 2014.

CHANGE IN DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION

The change in information of director subsequent to the publication of the
2013/2014 third quarterly report in February 2014 is set out below:

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul, an independent non-executive director of the
Company, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Kin Yat
Holdings Limited (stock code: 638, a company listed on the Stock Exchange) on
23 June 2014.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 65 of
this annual report and note 38 to the consolidated financial statements,

respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2014, the Company’s reserves, calculated in accordance with the
provisions of Cayman Islands’ legislation, amounted to approximately HK$183.6
million. As at 31 March 2013, there were no reserves available for distribution to
the Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Yan Tak (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Mau Tai

Mr. Foo Chi Ming @D

Non-executive Director
Madam Tsang Pui Man

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul 2

Professor Ng Ka Ming ™2

Mr. Wei Jianan ¢

Notes:

(1) Mr. Foo was appointed as non-executive Director on 16 August 2012 and re-designated as
executive director on 16 July 2013.

2) The Directors were appointed on 24 September 2013.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 25 to 28 of this

annual report.

Mr. Wong Mau Tai, Mr. Foo Chi Ming and Madam Tsang Pui Man have been
longest in office of all the Directors since their re-elections in the last annual
general meeting of the Company, they are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company at the 2014 annual
general meeting. All of the retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election in the 2014 annual general meeting.

The Company has received written annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul, Professor Ng Ka Ming, and Mr. Wei Jianan pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules. The Company and the nomination committee consider
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’® REMUNERATION AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH THE HIGHEST EMOLUMENT

Details of the emoluments of the Directors’ and the five individuals with the
highest emoluments disclosed on a named basis and/or by band respectively, are

set out in note 9 and note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

The Company has entered into service agreements with each of the executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors for a term of three and two
years, respectively. Their terms of office are also subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with

the articles of association of the Company and the GEM Listing Rules.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2014 annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed during

the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of Share Options of the Company and details of movements in the
Company’s share options during the year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, B ~ HH R By B £ RE R 1
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES HE 25

As at 31 March 2014, the interests of the Directors in the shares, underlying shares — * ~F—PU4E=H =+—H » FEH R AN A EH
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the 4T {a] A5 i 1 B (2 3% R 35 25 S W0 e ide o) ([ 2525 )
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which (i)  HAE 1 1) 55 XV ) (IR - A7 B ARy B fE Al vl
are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to s B () AR IERE S MOH BB XV ERES 7 8
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions 43 & 78 %016 7 2\ 7] K Vi 52 it (0 WE 26 (60 45 1% 25 AR
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) 5 75 %5 M 1A B2 16191 1) A7 B 0 S A i AF ik s 3 A
were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or A HE T S IR ) > B (i) MR 9 o o S 300 &2 4 1) &5
(iii) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant 352 MRJE B RO R T HE I S RE M HE R > 3R Gid)

to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows: HRAB B FE A b T LRI 56 5.46 5 5.67 R ZE A& AN
A RIS TR AR AT
Long positions in the shares of the Company
AL T By Z
Number of shares
Rty

Approximate
Number of percentage of
underlying interest in the
shares held Company’s
under equity issued
derivatives share capital
R A AR AT
Personal Family ~ Corporate  fijk TR DEATRA
Name of Director interests interests Interests 7 A A Total g )
WA WARES  KihEs AR ROBA W MEREAL
Mr. Chan Yan Tak (“Mr. Chan”) BB S (TR D) - - 385,400,000 500,000° 385,900,000 74.93%
Mr. Wong Mau Tai HRREE - - - 5000000° 5,000,000 0.97%
Mr. Foo Chi Ming [LrRPS - - - 5,000,000° 5,000,000 0.97%
Madam Tsang Pui Man (“Madam Tsang”) Bt ((Eat)) ~ 385,400,000 - 500,000 385,900,000 74.93%
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul BB e - - - 500,000° 500,000 0.10%
Professor Ng Ka Ming RFEBHR - - - 500,000° 500,000 0.10%
Mr. Wei Jianan bGP - - - 500,000° 500,000 0.10%
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Notes:

[€)] Madam Tsang is the spouse of Mr. Chan, who owns the entire issued share capital of Able
Island Group Limited (“Able Island”). Accordingly, Madam Tsang is deemed to be
interested in the 385,400,000 shares of the Company held by Able Island by virtue of the
SFO.

2) Mr. Chan owns the entire issued share capital of Able Island. Accordingly, Mr. Chan is
deemed to be interested in the 385,400,000 shares of the Company held by Able Island by
virtue of the SFO.

3) The represents interests in Share Options held by the relevant Directors as a beneficial owner
to subscribe for the relevant underlying shares granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme, details of which is set out in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” in this annual report and in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

“ The represents interests in Share Options held by Mr. Chan as beneficial owner to subscribe
for the underlying shares granted by the granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme. Madam Tsang is the spouse of Mr. Chan and is deemed to be interested that Share
Option held by Mr. Chan by virtue of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had any interest or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (i) are required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2014 was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2014, according to the register of interests kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO, the interest of the persons, other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and entered in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the

Company were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company

TAA A ey Z B AT

BRGNS

TR AR
REF—ME=ZA=+—H > REEEHFLPEHE
W5 336 foe A o W BT A B wi it > LUR AL (s
AR R EEATBN BBRAL) AL 7] B S A
W e 153 v A AR R o O B A 91 5 XV A A 2
Lo 393 ¥ C 00 € AR 2 ) B I 52 T A BRI R 7 e
BB R 11265 336 MRt kR AR 24 B BTl A7 B RC i
RO EAL RS T -

Approximate
percentage of
interest in the

Company’s

Number of issued capital

Capacity/nature Ordinary Shares A A ]

Name of Shareholders of interest Rl CLBE AT IR A Y
SR AR B HERE M TEBEE AR E S
Able Island (Note) (Fff5E) Beneficial Owner 385,400,000 74.83%

A A

Note: The entire issued share capital of Able Island is beneficially owned by Mr. Chan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the Company had not been notified
by any persons (other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETING INTEREST

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Directors were not aware of any business or
interest of the Directors, the controlling shareholders, the management shareholder
and their respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of

interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual report, there is sufficient
public float of 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the GEM
Listing Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to

offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM PLACING

The net proceeds from the Company’s issue of new shares at the time of its listing
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 11 October 2013, after deduction of related
issuance expenses, amounted to approximately HK$119.0 million of which
approximately HK$7.1 million was used in accordance with the proposed
applications set out in the Prospectus. The Directors believe that the remaining net
proceeds will be used according to the intended usages as set out in the Prospectus

issued by the Company on 30 September 2013.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately 99.3% (2013: 99.6%) of the
total sales and the aggregate sales attributable to the largest customer included

therein accounted for approximately 66.8% (2013: 71.4%) of the total sales.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 60.1% (2013: 64.4%)
of the total purchases and the aggregate purchases attributable to the largest
supplier, included therein accounted for approximately 21.6% (2013: 22.0%) of the

total purchases.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors, their associates, nor those
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in any of the

Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, no Director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a

party during the year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, there is no
contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a

controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to approximately
HK$0.2 million.
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INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISERS

As notified by WAG Worldsec Corporate Finance Limited (“WAG”), the
Company’s compliance adviser, neither WAG nor its directors or employees or
associates had any interest in the share capital of the Company or any member of
the Group (including options or rights to subscribe for such securities) as at 31
March 2014.

Pursuant to the agreement dated 9 October 2013 entered into between WAG and
the Company, WAG received and will receive fees for acting as the Company’s
compliance adviser.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2014 is set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements
fall under the definition of continuing connected transaction in Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the Company are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report section set out on pages 40 to 60.

STAFF

As at 31 March 2014, the Company and its subsidiaries had approximately 173
employees. Salaries of employee are maintained at competitive levels and are fixed
on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include provident fund,
insurance, medical cover, subsidised educational and training programmes as well
as the Share Option Scheme.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date of this annual report, the Group did not have any significant event
after the reporting period.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Messrs. CCIF CPA
Limited (“CCIF”) who shall retire at the 2014 annual general meeting of the
Company. A resolution will be proposed at the 2014 annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint CCIF as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
RM Group Holdings Limited

Chan Yan Yak
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 June 2014

BRGNS

45 R I o i
RoF—RESA=+— A - AN 4B
S5 8 0 5SS LA LA ) (T 0 7)) 2
A ST (T I 5 U A A
55 ) A S £ PR 28 09 IS AT A ]
e (604700 s R M 2 O ) -

TRAFHE o 7 BN R & — =4+ A JLH AT
S Bih ek > 2 AN A OB O AR 2y A
AR RAITER N -

3R 152 %)
AP - PUE = = AR
A2 A 32 5% WS O B B R M 32

TE A7 WA 3 M 5 32 BERR 2 BRI\ 22 5 i
AR A AR TR 5 20 B 2 B AC 5y o AR T
iR L 7 B SR b iy RS 20 FE R BEER BLE o

BN A5
A [ 9 N 58 2 A R 5 S o A B TS R
§E32 0

BEE IR
AR TR £ A AR 4 40
60 EL {3 L «

BT

RZE-PAEZ =+ AN T RHHE S
AR 4R A - B B3 SAER R R BT N
KT Sl R E AL AL o HABAR B AR L5 AR
G~ PRBR o BERRORER - B0 E D B I A R
W A )

e W1 FIH
HAACAE R LA » 7 S A T 02500 8
H TR I o

A% B il
BRE MBS MR Tt B A B A R R
(TBREEUG & aHhm ) FA% - HOIF IR A2 7 2014 41
FORAER G LR o AN R 2014 48 BACA A
K B3R 2RERE > DI BRIE S &t il 2 AR 2
F R B o

REREFE
1l 48 2 4 O PR PR A )

Ea
PR
> “E—UAENH A

RM Group Holdings Limited £l 5 3 42 [8] % 5 A5 BR 24 W) 39



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
185 i

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance to the
Company’s growth and has devoted considerable efforts to identifying and
formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to the Company’s needs.
The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Throughout the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in the Code except the deviation from the Code provision
A.2.1, which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separated. Detail of the deviation is elaborated below under the

paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”.

The Board has conducted an annual review of its corporate governance duties in
accordance with its terms of reference on corporate governance functions contained
in the Code, and considered that the Company’s (i) policies and practices on
corporate governance; (ii) approach to the continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; (iii) policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; and (iv) the compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report, are adequate and appropriate for
the Company in light of its current corporate strategy. They will be kept under

review in light of the changing legal and regulatory requirements.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, all with professional backgrounds
and/or extensive expertise for the direction and oversight of the Group’s strategic
priorities and public responsibilities. The current composition of the Board

comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Yan Tak (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Mau Tai

Mr. Foo Chi Ming

Non-executive Director:
Madam Tsang Pui Man

Independent non-executive Directors:
Professor Ng Ka Ming”

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul®”

Mr. Wei Jianan"

o appointed on 24 September 2013
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The composition, experience and balance of skills on the Board are regularly
reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members with longstanding and
deep knowledge of the Group alongside new Directors who bring fresh
perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The process for the nomination

of Directors is led by the nomination committee.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.
A list of Directors identifying their roles, functions and titles is available on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Save as Mr. Chan, the Chairman of the Board, is the spouse of Madam Tsang Pui
Man, a non-executive Director and other information disclosed in Report of
Directors in this annual report, if any, there is no financial, business, family or

other material and/or relevant relationship between the Board members.

The Board complied with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

Directors’ Appointment and Re-election

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, one third of the Directors for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation and each Director shall be subject to
retirement at annual general meeting at least once every three year under the GEM
Listing Rules. The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have been
the longest in office since their last re-elections. Any Director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy is subject to re-election at the first general meeting after his/her

appointment.

Mr. Wong Mau Tai, Mr. Foo Chi Ming and Madam Tsang Pui Man have been the
longest in office among the Directors since their last appointment, they are subject
to retirement by rotation in accordance with articles of association at 2014 annual
general meeting. All of the retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election in 2014 annual general meeting.
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For independent non-executive Director who has served the Company for more
than nine years, his further appointment will be subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting and the papers to
the Shareholders accompanying that resolution will include the reasons why the

Board believes he/she is still independent and should be re-elected.

The Company has entered into service agreements with each of the executive
Directors and non-executive Director for a term of three and two years,
respectively. Their terms of office are also subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at an annual general meeting of the Company at least once every three
years in accordance with the articles of association of the Company and the GEM

Listing Rules.

Directors’ Responsibilities and Delegation

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day management of the Company’s business to the
management of the Company, and focuses its attention on matters affecting the
Company’s overall strategic policies, corporate governance, finances and
shareholders. These include financial statements, dividend policy, significant
changes in accounting policy, annual operating budget, certain material contracts,
strategies for future growth, major financing arrangements and major investments,
corporate governance functions, risk management strategies, treasury policies and
fare structures.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr.

Chan is the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Chan provides leadership to the Board in terms of establishing policies and

business directions and ensures that the Board discharges its responsibilities.

Mr. Chan has been responsible for the overall management and strategic
development of the Group since 2005. He is also responsible for formulating,
approving, organising and implementing the Group’s strategy. His expert
knowledge in the areas of development and retail marketing of health and beauty
supplement products has assisted the Group to grow substantially during the past
eight years. The Board therefore considers that it is beneficial to and in the interest
of the Group for Mr. Chan to continue with his roles as the chairman of the Board

and chief executive officer of the Group.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors take an active role in Board meetings,
contribute to the development of strategies and policies and make sound judgement
in various aspects. They will take lead when potential conflicts of interest arise.
Independent Board Committee comprising all independent non-executive Directors
will be formed to advise the independent Shareholders on those connected
transactions to be approved by the independent Shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company. The independent non-executive Directors are
also members of various Board Committees and devote sufficient amount of time

and attention to the affairs of the Company.

Directors’ Induction and Development

The Company provides a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction programme
for newly appointed Directors to enhance their knowledge and understanding of
the key areas of business operations and practices of the Group as well as the
general and specific responsibilities and duties of Directors under relevant law and
regulation and the GEM Listing Rules.

An induction programme covering the roles of a director from the strategic,
planning and management perspective, as well as the essence of corporate
governance and the trends in these areas, were therefore arranged for the three
independent non-executive Directors, Professor Ng Ka Ming, Mr. Cheng Kwok
Kin, Paul and Mr. Wei Jianan, when they joined the Board in September 2013.

Every Board member receives the regulatory information under the GEM Listing
Rules and corporate background information upon joining the Board, which
contains, among others, an overview of Directors’ responsibilities, the guidelines
on conduct and information on other key corporate governance issues. The

information will be reviewed and updated regularly.

Continuous professional development and training of Directors is an ongoing
process to ensure the continued enhancement of their skills and knowledge. The
company secretary regularly circulates details of training courses (including those
on roles, functions and duties of listed company directors, economic,
environmental and social topics) which may be of interest to Directors. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses provided by external

bodies at the Company’s expense.
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In light of recent developments in the GEM Listing Rules (including in relation to
board diversity and trading halts), the New Companies Ordinance and briefing
materials were also provided to members of the Board by the company secretary to

keep them abreast of the latest developments.

All Directors are required to provide the Company with their training records on an
annual basis, and such records are maintained by the company secretary for regular
review by the nomination committee. The training records of the Directors were

reviewed by the nomination committee in June 2014.

Board Proceedings

The Directors will attend quarterly Board meetings in person, and all Directors
have full and timely access to relevant information and may take independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense, if necessary, in accordance with the

approved procedures.

Notice to regular Board meeting is served to all Directors at least 14 days before
the meeting. For other Board and Board Committees meetings, reasonable notice is

generally given.

The draft agenda for regular Board meetings is prepared by the company secretary
and approved by the Chairman of the Board. Directors are advised to inform the
Chairman of the Board or the company secretary not less than one week before the
relevant Board meeting if they wish to include a matter in the agenda of the
meeting. The agenda together with Board papers are sent at least three days before
the intended date of the Board meeting. To facilitate the decision-making process,
the Directors are free to have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information and have unrestricted access to the advice and services of the

company secretary when required.

The Chairman has encouraged all Directors to make full and active contributions to
the Board’s affairs and takes the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best
interest of the Company. He has promoted a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating the effective contribution of independent non-executive Directors and
ensuring constructive relations between executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors. Accordingly, the Board operates in a functional manner with

clearly defined objectives, strategies and responsibilities.
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All Directors are required to comply with their duty to act in the best interests of
the Company and have particular regard to the interest of the Shareholders as a
whole. Amongst others, all Directors are required to declare the nature and extent
of their interests, if any, in any transaction, arrangement or other proposal to be
considered by the Board at Board meetings. Unless specifically permitted by the
articles of association of the Company, a Director cannot cast a vote on any
contract, transaction, arrangement or any other proposal in which he/she has or any
of his/her associates is materially interested.

Monthly financial information is provided to the Directors by the company
secretary to discharge their duties and acknowledge the development of the
Company. Other regular and ad hoc reports will also be prepared for the Board and
its various committees, to ensure that the Directors are supplied with all the

requested information in a timely and appropriate manner.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The Company was listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 11 October 2013
and during the period from 11 October 2013 up to the date of this report, the Board
held 4 meetings. The attendance record of each Director is as follows:
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Attendance/Number of Board meetings
during the Directors’ tenure of office

Name of Directors ERLEH TR AR P R VR
Executive Directors BfFEH
Mr. Chan Yan Tak B R SE A

(Chairman and chief executive officer) (L REHATEAE) 4/4
Mr. Wong Mau Tai kAR ek 4/4
Mr. Foo Chi Ming (BB 4/4
Non-executive Directors FHATHEF
Madam Tsang Pui Man Wi 4 - 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors WAL TESF
Professor Ng Ka Ming REHHIR 4/4
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin Paul B 7 A 414
Mr. Wei Jianan B 4/4
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Directors are expected to devote sufficient time and attention to performing their
duties and responsibilities towards the Group. The high attendance record at the
Board and Board committees meetings for the year ended 31 March 2014, which
was reviewed by the nomination committee in June 2014, demonstrates Directors’

strong commitment to the Company.

The minutes of Board and Board committees meetings are prepared by the
company secretary with details of the matters considered by the Board and Board
committees and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Director(s)
and members of Board committee or dissenting views expressed. The draft minutes
are circulated to all members of the Board and Board committees for their

comment within a reasonable time after the meeting.

Statutory Confirmations

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company has received annual confirmation
of independence from all the independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The nomination committee has assessed
their independence and concluded that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent within the definition of the GEM Listing Rules and continues to

consider each of them to be independent.

According to the Code, each Director should ensures that he/she can give sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company and make contribution to the
development of the Company’s strategy and policies through independent,
constructive and informed comments. In light of the Code provision on directors’
time commitments, the chairman held a meeting with the non-executive Directors
in February 2014.

Regarding disclosure of the number and nature of offices held by the Directors in
public companies or organisations and other significant commitments as well as
their identity and the time involved (the “Commitments”) to the issuer, all
Directors have agreed to disclose their Commitments to the Company in a timely
manner and confirm his/her other directorships, major appointments and interests

to the Company twice a year.

Directors’ Insurance

Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance has been arranged. The Company has
conducted an annual review of the Company’s Directors’ and Officers’ liability
insurance policy with reference to recent trends in the insurance market and other
relevant factors. The review compared the amount of coverage against other

similar policies purchase by other companies.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (“Code of Conduct”) regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
(“Required Standard of Dealings”). After having made specific enquiry, the
Company confirms that all Directors complied throughout the year ended 31 March
2014 with the Required Standard of Dealings and the Code of Conduct. Senior
managers, other nominated managers and staff who, because of their office in the
Company, are likely to be in possession of inside information of the Company,

have been requested to comply with the provisions of the Code of Conduct.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary, who
is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and for
facilitating information flows and communications among Directors as well as with

Shareholders and management.

Ms. Mak Mei Kuen was appointed as the company secretary of the Company on
24 September 2013. Please refer to the section “Biographical Details for Directors
and Senior Management” for details of her professional qualifications. For the year
ended 31 March 2014, the company secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of

professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the Board has established a total
of three board committees, namely, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. Each of these board committees is governed by its respective
terms of reference which are available on the websites of both the Company

(www.royalmedic.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

All board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate

circumstances, at the Company’s expense, to perform their responsibilities.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin,
Paul, Mr. Wei Jianan and Professor Ng Ka Ming. Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul is
the chairman of the audit committee. All members of the audit committee are
independent non-executive Directors. The chairman of the audit committee
possesses the appropriate accounting and financial management expertise as
required under rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. None of the members of the

audit committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditor.

Duties of Audit Committee

The primary duties of the audit committee, among other things, are to make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
external auditor; review the financial statements and material advice in respect of

financial reporting; and oversee internal control procedures of the Company.

Work Performed by Audit Committee
During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the audit committee held 3

meetings. The attendance of each member is as follows:
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Attendance/Number of
audit committee
meetings held

during the year

AR R T
Name of members A 4T BB ek
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul (Chairman) W 2 S () 3/3
Mr. Wei Jianan B R Sk 3/3
Professor Ng Ka Ming BRI 3/3
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In accordance with its terms of reference, the audit committee performed the

following work during the year ended 31 March 2014:

1. reviewed, assessed and commented the draft annual, interim and quarterly
financial statements and the draft results announcements of the Company,
including any changes in accounting policies and practices; major
judgmental areas; compliance with accounting and auditing standards; and
compliance with the listing requirements on the GEM Listing Rules and
legal requirements in relation to financial reporting prior to recommending

them to the Board for approval.

2. reviewed, assessed and commented the engagement letter in relation to the
evaluation of the internal control system of the Group and the internal
controls review report prior to recommending them to the Board for

approval.

3. reviewed, assessed and commented relationship with the external auditor
and independence and the level of support and co-operation given by the

Group’s management.

4. reviewed, assessed and approved the appointment and remuneration of

external auditor.

5. reviewed, assessed and commented the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting

function and their training programmes.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Wei Jianan,
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul and Professor Ng Ka Ming. Mr. Wei Jianan is the
chairman of the remuneration committee. All members of the remuneration

committee are independent non-executive Directors.

Duties of Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all the
Directors and senior management of the Group; review performance based
remuneration; and ensure none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.
The remuneration committee also administers and makes determinations with
respect to the share option scheme adopted by the Company. When the
remuneration package of an individual Director is under review, such Director will

abstain from voting.
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Work Performed by Remuneration Committee
During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the remuneration committee held

3 meetings. The attendance of each member is as follows:

FZ A P AT L AF

BE R -E = =1 — B L BFBUERE > B
% H R AT SR o A A R BRI
B

Attendance/Number of
remuneration committee
meetings held

during the year

APy R
Name of members BB AW N 2 5 o g ki
Mr. Wei Jianan (Chairman) MRS (R 3/3
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul W Wz e A 3/3
Professor Ng Ka Ming B e 33

In accordance with its terms of reference, the remuneration committee performed

the following work during the year ended 31 March 2014:

1. reviewed, assessed and commented the policy for the remuneration of

Directors and senior management.

2. reviewed, assessed and commented the procedures for fixing the

remuneration packages.

3. reviewed, assessed and commented the performance of all Directors.

4. made recommendation on the remuneration packages of all Directors and
the senior management.

5. reviewed and approved the terms of independent non-executive Directors’

and Directors’ service contracts.
6. approved the grant of share option to Directors and the senior management,
evaluating the salary adjustments to Directors and the senior management

and/or other related matters.

7. approved the refreshment of share mandate limit under the share option

scheme.
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Wei Jianan, Mr.
Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul and Professor Ng Ka Ming. Mr. Wei Jianan is the chairman
of the nomination committee. All members of the nomination committee are

independent non-executive Directors.

Duties of Nomination Committee

The primary function of the nomination committee is to make recommendations to
the Board regarding appointment of Directors and candidates to fill vacancies on
the Board. and to assess the independence of the independent non-executive

Directors.

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (“Policy”’) during the year which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity of Board members. The objective of the
Policy stated that selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service , the summary of which are set out below:

(a)  With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable

development.

(b)  In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of service.

(¢)  All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of

diversity on the Board.

The nominations committee is required to give consideration to the Policy when
identifying suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected

candidates will bring to the Board.
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Work Performed by Nomination Committee 1RE LR GPEITTAF
During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the nomination committee held 1 ~ #%E ~F—4E=H =+—H IE BTB4EE > 24
meeting. The attendance of each member is as follows: Z B O BT IR o & A I RS An

B

Attendance/Number of
nomination committee
meetings held
during the year
AR R R
Name of members A RATHFEHRRY
Mr. Wei Jianan (Chairman) B () /1
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul U 52 e e /1
Professor Ng Ka Ming S 540 B /1

In accordance with its terms of reference, the nomination committee performed the % ~ZF— P4 = H = 1 — H IL4F BEAR PR LI RE
following work during the year ended 31 March 2014: Wi > AT B EEIEATUA N LA

1. reviewed, assessed and commented, inter alia, the policy for the nomination 1. B SR A (g 8 2 FE UK -

of Directors. AR A
2. monitored the composition and effectiveness of the Board. 2. R e A S o
3. assessed the independence of each independent non-executive Director. 3. FTAL B 2 S I AT I S S
4. sourced individuals suitably qualified to become Board members. 4. Yot G s iU E S5 OB 1 Al N o

5. identified those Directors to be retired by rotation and then be re-elected as 5. it 7 AR A A ) A Ak o P A L) B ) S A

Directors in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company in TR RIS A AR 28 ) T e RO AR K b
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and the GEM SR AT S R R o
Listing Rules.

6. reviewed and assessed the nomination procedures, process and criteria. 6. FH SPGB g MR o
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Analysis of diversity of the Board by nomination committee is shown by the

following charts:

Gender
1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

e NPk

IR B uN bR SR n & = i)
i

Number of years with the Company

85 A% 2 w4 )

B Male

B Female &

Position

BkAE

W Executive Director

HATEH

B Independent Non-executive Director
LI ATE S
1 Non-executive Director

FHATE S

B 0-3 years 4F
B 4-6 years 4

1 Over 10 years &3 104F

Age Group
SRR AL

B Aged40to 60
405 6038,

M Aged61to70
612705

= Aged over 70
705% L E
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Business Experiences
[EFEE

- Health food and pharmaceutical trading
PRAe il T 2E 0 2 5

B Product development 2 fh BH %§

B Materials sourcing 914+ 7 il
Branding-building #8157
Advertising J& 7
Marketing 45 84

g Retail networking & trading

B Telecommunication &

B Transportation 2

M Accounting &l
Auditing % #
Financial consulting 475 i [4]
Business executive FH51TE

Garment and household products

e B 2% i R it

Academic Background

Biig R

B Chinese Medicine " 5524
Business Administration I & & B
Accounting & 5T

International Business and Economics

Chemical L2

B Philosophy £
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the accounts of the
Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014. The accounts are
prepared on a going concern basis and give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2014, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flow for the year. In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31
March 2014, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and, apart
from those new and amended accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts for the year ended 31 March 2014, have applied them consistently with
previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates have been made that are
prudent and reasonable. The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are

set out on pages 61 to 62 of this annual report.

Internal Control System

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group’s system of internal controls. The internal controls are designed to meet the
Group’s particular needs and to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed,
and are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks to achieve business
objective and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
misstatements or losses. The Group’s internal control framework covers (i) the
setting of objectives, budgets and targets; (ii) the establishment of regular reporting
of financial information, in particular, the tracking of deviations between actual
performances and budgets/targets; (iii) the delegation of authority; and (iv) the

establishment of clear lines of accountability.

On behalf of the Board, the audit committee has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2014, including the reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
effectiveness of risk management functions and the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function. This is achieved primarily through
approving the scope of the annual internal audit plan, reviewing the findings of
internal audit work, the annual and interim financial statements, and the nature,

scope of work, and report of the external auditors.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s annual general meeting is one of the principal channels of
communication with its Shareholders. The Board and the management are
committed to the constructive use of annual general meeting as a forum to meet
with Shareholders and to hear their views and answer their questions about the
Group and its business. The chairman of the Board, and each Board Committee’s
chairman or his alternate will attend annual general meeting along with the external

auditor to answer Shareholders’ questions.

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the 2014 annual general meeting and
exercise their right to vote. Shareholders who are unable to attend the 2014 annual
general meeting can appoint proxies to attend and vote at the 2014 annual general

meeting.

The Company will send the notice of the 2014 annual general meeting to
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the annual general meeting and
extraordinary general meeting notice to Shareholders more than 10 clear business

days before an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders are invited to ask questions related to the business of the Company.
Apart from usual business at the 2014 annual general meeting, the Board has
proposed general mandates for the repurchase of shares and the issue of shares of

the Company.

Further details of business to be conducted at the 2014 annual general meeting will
be set out in the circular to Shareholders to be sent together with this annual report
and posted on the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange. All resolutions
will be passed by way of a poll conducted and verified by the Company’s registrar
as an independent scrutineer. The poll results of each of the proposed resolutions
written requisition to the Board will be published on the Stock Exchange’s website

shortly after the 2014 annual general meeting is held.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for making enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Hong Kong branch registrar and transfer office, namely, Tricor

Investor Services Limited, whose contact details are as follows:

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Address : Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
Telephone : (852)2980 1333
Fax : (852) 28108185
E-mail :  is-enquiries @hk.tricorglobal.com
Website : http://www.tricoris.com
Attention : Board of Directors/Company Secretary

Shareholders and members of the investor community are welcome to send their

enquiries to the Board and the company secretary as follows:

RM Group Holdings Limited

Address ¢ 21/F., Man Shing Industrial Building
307-311 Castle Peak Road
Kwai Chung

Telephone : (852) 2297 0000

Fax T (852) 2755 9999

E-mail 1 ir@royalmedic.com.hk

Website : www.royalmedic.com

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s information to the

extent such information is publicly available.
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Procedures for convening extraordinary general meeting on
requisition

One or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company (the “Requisition”) to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the

transaction of any business specified in the Requisition.

The Requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the secretary of the
Company at the principal place of business in Hong Kong and registered office of

the Company in Cayman Islands as follows:

Principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
Address: 21/F, Man Shing Industrial Building

307-311 Castle Peak Road

Kwai Chung

Attention: Board of Director/Company Secretary

Registered office of the Company in Cayman Islands
Address: Cricket Square Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman

KY1-1111 Cayman Island

Attention: Board of Director/Company Secretary

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals for the Company’s consideration
at the general meetings can send their proposals to the company secretary at the

principal place of business in Hong Kong as specified above.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’ relationship programme to
enable Shareholders and investors to better understand the Group’s business, the
Company has established various channels of communication with the

Shareholders and the investor community:

1. Shareholders can raise any comments on the performance and future

directions of the Company with the directors at the annual general meeting.

2. The Company may arrange press and analysts’ conferences twice a year in
relation to the results announcements, at which the executive Directors are
available to answer questions regarding the Group’s operational and

financial performances.

3. The Company’s website at www.royalmedic.com contains important
corporate information, annual, quarterly and interim reports, as well as
announcements and circulars issued by the Company to enable the
Shareholders and the investor community to have timely access to updated

information about the Group.

4. The Board has established a Shareholders’” communication policy since

2013 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

5. The Company has uploaded its memorandum and articles of association of
the Company on the Company’s website at www.royalmedic.com and the
Stock Exchange’s website. There is no significant changes in the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association during the year ended 31 March
2014.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company engages CCIF as its external auditor. In order to maintain CCIF’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards, the audit committee pre-approves all audit
services to be provided by CCIF and discusses with CCIF the nature and scope of

their audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences.

The audit committee also reviews and pre-approves the engagement of CCIF to

provide any non-audit services for complying with relevant legal requirements.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, CCIF received the following remuneration

from the Group in connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services to
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the Group:
For the year ended
Type of Services & 2 b 31 March 2014
BEZZ—NU4
ZA=tH
1R4E B
HK$°000
T#L
Audit services: MU
Annual audit services AF R BUIR B 700
Non-audit services: FEAZ B -
Interim review services r A 7 B AR 180
Reporting accountants and other services H R w A A A R 1,604

60  Annual Report 2013/2014 4



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

®

CCIF

CCIF CPA LIMITED
PR R BRI IEFRARAS
9/F Leighton Centre

77 Leighton Road
Causeway Bay Hong Kong

B RS TRIEET 7R
TEEA oM

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RM GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of RM Group Holdings
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on
pages 63 to 155 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to

any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2014, and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 June 2014

Kwok Cheuk Yuen
Practising Certificate Number P02412
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Ao 7 9E it S L il 2 i W i R

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —ZF— U4 =] =+—H IL4E )

2014 2013
R ZE— AR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E T THIT
TURNOVER S 6 169,684 163,767
Cost of sales S8 AR (39,692) (34,757)
GROSS PROFIT EF) 129,992 129,010
Other revenue and other net income oAt g B LA A 5 B 7 2,710 1,337
Selling and distribution expenses S AT K o381 B S (48,435) (38,018)
Administrative expenses 1T 52 (60,982) (44,739)
Equity-settled share-based payments DU RESS B D B4 S Ak 2 B 52 34 (7,364) -
Listing expenses ETB X (15,370) (996)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS B RF 551 46,594
Finance costs il R A 8(c) (104) (110)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION [ A58 il a5 ) 8 447 46,484
Taxation BiIH 11(a) (6,180) (7,220)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AN F A N AT AE N
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS (k518) /A
OF THE COMPANY (5,733) 39,264
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS At 2 i R 5
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: M E A FEHRIEZIEH -
Exchange difference arising on translation of RS ANE SE TS T 7 A 1 R b, 26 B
foreign operations (127) -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE /N7 2SN
(LOSS)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR AR A (1),
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS WA S
OF THE COMPANY (5,860) 39,264
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE TR (), BF
BASIC AND DILUTED (HK CENTS) FEACT R (5Bl 14 (1.3) 10.2

The notes on pages 68 to 155 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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f o B 5 51K Dt 2%

As at 31 March 2014 & ~ZFE—JI4HE=H =+—H

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2014 2013
ZR—U4E TR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
R 5E T THsoT
Non-current assets I
Property, plant and equipment Y~ W st 16 17,036 16,868
Intangible assets Y & 17 743 -
17,779 16,868
Current assets B A
Inventories H& 18 17,467 12,765
Trade and other receivables JHRE WA R R e T At A 3 19 25,826 32,572
Pledged bank deposits CHEHRERAT A7 3K 20 - 5,000
Cash and cash equivalents B4 M S8 21 123,299 15,708
Tax recoverable ] i ] A TE 11(b) 2,218 16
168,810 66,061
Current liabilities WE) AR
Trade and other payables JREAST AR R S L Ath A} 22 13,811 13,202
Obligations under finance lease il L R A 23 - 47
Secured bank loans LI ERIT K 24 2,947 3,491
Amounts due to related parties JEASH B 8+ Kk IE 25 - 26,529
Provisions T 26 1,334 1,038
18,092 44,307
Net current assets W) A 150,718 21,754
Total assets less current liabilities yage 3R ERT R yE=E 168,497 38,622
Non-current liabilities I B £ H
Deferred tax liabilities R SRl T 4 f 27 366 71
Net assets g RE e 168,131 38,551
EQUITY WS
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AL E A NEAGHESR
Share capital A 28 5,150 -
Reserves fiti 162,981 38,551
TOTAL EQUITY RE %5 BE % 168,131 38,551

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 155 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2014 and are signed on
its behalf by:

Chan Yan Tak
Director

A

The notes on pages 68 to 155 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% ~ZF— U4 =H =+—H L4

Attributable to owners of the Company

AN R Nk
Share
Share Share Merger Translation option Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
B BepER  AOFREAT MOTREAT  WRBERER  REEA At
HK$°000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T T Tl T T Tl T
(note 38(a)) (note 38(c)) (note 38(d)) (note 38(e))
(Wiik38(a))  (WHiE38(c) (HiFaE38(d)) (Hirik38(e))
At 1 April 2012 WoE—"HFNH—H - - - - - 39,287 39,287
Profit and total comprehensive income A A 3 ) B 2 T A R
for the year - - - - - 39,264 39,264
Dividends (note 13) 5 (3 13) - - - - - 40,0000 (40,000)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 WoE-ZE=ZA=1+—H
R = F—ZAENH—H - - - - - 38.551 38.551
Loss for the year GRN) o2 - - - - - (5,733) (5,733)
Other comprehensive loss: AR EAL 2 T A
Exchange difference arising on translation of #5415 275 it € A 1
foreign operations e §, 7% - - - (127) - - (127)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AF 4 TR AR A A - - - (127) - (5.733) (5.860)
Issue of ordinary shares pursuant to AR A AT
the Reorganisation 10 - (10) - - - -
Capitalisation issue GRS 3,844 (3.844) - - - - -
Issuance of new shares by way of placing HRAF RS BT 1,296 137,376 - - - - 138,672
Share issue expense Tt 47 B 5L - (10,596) - - - - (10,596)
Equity-settled share-based payments VIBCHERS 5 DA S A 2 B S - - - - 7,364 - 7.364
At 31 March 2014 REF—NE=A=1—H 5,150 122,936 (10) (127) 7,364 32,818 168,131
The notes on pages 68 to 155 form an integral part of these financial statements. SE68 L 5 155 EL I M1 8 A A g i R ny —3 43
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Bl e R

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(Z% ~F — U4 =H =+—H L4

2014 2013
ZR —F—-=
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
R 5E T THsoT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R T
Profit before taxation B il i 1) 447 46,484
Adjustments for: LA & TE T/ R 2
Finance costs Tl A 8(c) 104 110
Write-down of inventories TR & 18(b) 2,388 1,147
Reversal of write-down of inventories I AT 4 ] 18(b) (928) (508)
Equity-settled share-based payments DA HRERE f B3 LA B0 S A 2 B 52 34 7,364 -
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment LE BN Y SRR 16 1,727 1,467
Amortisation of intangible assets STV K A 17 57 -
Bank interest income SRATALE A 7 (264) -
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, WEWE - FE s
plant and equipment AR, (4 ) V4 7 56 (1,246)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries Hh B BT 2 B (4 A 2 T AR 7 (2,118) -
8,833 47,454
Changes in working capital BEE SEE)
Increase in inventories TE& (6,162) (2,295)
Decrease/(increase) in trade JARE A B R T LAt BB g 2 IE
and other receivables W () 6,746 (5,268)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and JRE AT I 2 e H At R A T
other payables W, () 2,729 (8,492)
Decrease in amounts due to related parties JRE AT B N R R D = (2,389)
Increase in provision of goods return M e 296 178
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS K H &% %% 0B 4 12,442 29,188
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid T B FIRL 11(b) (8,087) (28,277)
Net cash generated from operating activities 2 [ £88 JE 055 0y Bl & V9 4 4,355 911
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLLOWS

A B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% ~ZF— U4 =H =+—H L4

2014 2013
Ry —F =
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
R &E T THsIT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ‘e gyl
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EE W - R K 16 (1,981) (2,886)
Proceeds from sale of property, W B KR
plant and equipment REEer 30 2,100

Purchase of intangible assets T Y 17 (800) -

Bank interest received CERTTFLE 264 -

Decrease /(increase) in pledged bank deposit AR ERAT A D (384 m) 5,000 (5,000)

Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of 8 i J&§ /A 7] ir He F P RERY)

B4 KB4 % EY 31(a) (2) -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ HE R B B i B4 3

(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 2,511 (5,786)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il 5 B

Repayment of secured bank loans TR HEAR SRAT R K (544) (529)

Interest paid EASFLE (103) (104)

Decrease in amounts due to related parties JRE AT B N R IR D (26,529) (13,500)

Capital element of finance lease payments Pl B A5 R AR A (47) (90)

Interest element of finance lease payments RGBS FLE B 4 1) (6)

Proceeds from issurance of shares upon listing *Eﬁfﬁﬁﬂ%%é AT Z M BT A5 3K 138,672 -

Transaction costs directly attributable to BT H RIS 22 5

the issurance of shares BUASAT R (10,596) -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) 2K H_/(FI) & 3% B i

FINANCING ACTIVITIES B4 100,852 (14,229)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH Bl BB SRR, (i)

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 107,718 (19,104)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [T 256 538 1) ) 2 127) -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS SRR B4 I Bl A S E

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 15,708 34,812
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AR B 4 I B4 S

AT END OF YEAR 21 123,299 15,708

The notes on pages 68 to 155 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 3 S 205 ¥R I

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

1.

68

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION

(a)

(b)

Corporate Information

RM Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”’) was incorporated and
domiciled in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law, Cap. 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability on 5 December 2011.
The address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
Company has established a principle place of business in Hong Kong
at 21/F., Man Shing Industrial Building, 307-311 Castle Peak Road,
Kwai Chung, Hong Kong and has been registered as a non-Hong
Kong company under Part XI of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance on 5 April 2012. The Company’s issued shares have been
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 11
October 2013.

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the sale, marketing and distribution of health and beauty supplements
and products in Hong Kong and Taiwan. The Group’s products are
sold and distributed under its proprietary brand names of the
companies within the Group and the private label brands specifically
developed for and owned by a renowned chain of health and beauty

products in Hong Kong and Macau (the “Distribution Facilitator”).

Reorganisation

Pursuant to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of the Company
and its subsidiaries now comprising the Group completed on 23
September 2013 to rationalise the Group’s structure in preparation for
the listing of the shares of the Company on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, the Company became the holding company of the Group.
Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of the
Company dated 30 September 2013 (the “Prospectus”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

forn o1 A 985 A B ek

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F —VI4E=H =+ —H (L4

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND

REORGANISATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Reorganisation (Continued)
The Group resulting from the Reorganisation is regarded as a
continuing entity. Accordingly, the combined statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income and combined statement of
changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the
combined statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013 have
been prepared on the basis as if the Company had always been
holding company of the companies now comprising the Group
throughout the year. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared using the principles of merger accounting in accordance
with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger accounting under common
control combination” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) as if the group structure under
the Reorganisation had been in existence throughout the year or since
their respective dates of incorporation of the entities now comprising
the Group, whichever is the shorter period.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year
and the comparative period continue to be those of the predecessor
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and
saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in
sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“GEM Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from the
initial application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods

reflected in these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

2.

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March

2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group
are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar
(“HKD”), rounded to the nearest thousand except for per share data.
HKD is the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation

currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial

statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent

from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have a significant effect on the financial statements and major sources

of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

forn o1 A 985 A B ek

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
investment with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other

parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and
cashflows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in the relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and

no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on

initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(i)),
unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a

disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 3 S 205 ¥R I

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

2.

72

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Business combination under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or businesses first came

under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are combined
using the existing book values from the controlling party’s
perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or excess
of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the
time of common control combination, to the extent of the continuation

of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income include the results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of

common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements are
presented as if the entities or businesses had been combined at the
end of the previous reporting period or when they first came under

common control, whichever is shorter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(e) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously-held equity interest in

the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and

liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-
generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination and is tested annually

for impairment (see note 2(i)).

On the disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment loss (see note 2(i)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using

the straight-line method, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is

depreciated over the unexpired term of lease;

—  buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the date of

completion;

—  other property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Leasehold improvements 20% per annum

Plant and machinery 30%-33% per annum

Furniture, fixture and equipment 20%-33% per annum

Motor vehicles 20% per annum

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity
of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign

currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(®

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net proceeds on disposal and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or

disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less

accumulated impairment losses.

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised
from the date they are available for use and their estimated useful
lives are as follows:

— Product development rights 7 years
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(€]

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangibles asset arising from development
(or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised

if, only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

— the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so

that it will be available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

— the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

—  how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;

—  the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the

intangible asset; and

—  the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to

the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets

that are acquired separately.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2, FEFHFIBOR (5)

(CONTINUED)
(h) Leased assets (h)y HMEEE
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, (s 4 8] 1 E SR TE e YRR A RE R > AT
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement A RN S AT — R A A
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of WA S EE > FlEZHE (g
time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a TR S — R 38 5) BN E B
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the GHE - e N E B P
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the HIFEAETIE S » WA A BLHRT
legal form of a lease. A ENEREE L -
(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group i) ML EE
Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer to the AEFEBIEHESFAWEE »
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are T 2 A B A HE B 48 R A0 R B
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do N K| 25 YRS 2 AR EH > Ty
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership MR EREEE o Wk
to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the i) s A (] EORS AT RE 4R KRRy
following exception: R B e ) 2 1) L R 0 AR
BHE > LT DL -
— land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair — MWEKSHE™REAH
value of which cannot be measured separately from the Y > T LN SF (i
fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception Ve B L b 2 B ) p
of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a O FH 4 A2 BRI N OF
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held B A T H
under an operating lease. For these purposes, the AR IR E R S A A
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first 0 > M BE M R B 2R
entered into by the Group, or taken over from the R P8 20 & B A H )
previous lessee. Aho s bT S > HE A
ZC 14 TRy [ AR 4 I I
F oL AR B R B4
SRR AN BB
I ] o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the assets under finance leases, the
amount representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, of
such assets are included in property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are
recorded as obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write off the costs of the assets over
the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 2(f). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(i).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to
profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the

remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting

period.

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments

made. Contingent rentals are charged as expense in the

accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leased assets (Continued)

(h)

(iv)

Leasehold and buildings for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lumpsum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relevant fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building

element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease

term on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

@

Impairment of assets

(i)  Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the

Group about one or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

—  asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an

investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(@

(®)

Impairment of trade and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss for trade
receivables and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these financial assets share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets

with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

@

(®)

Impairment of trade and other receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined had

no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off

directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(@

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or an impairment loss

previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— intangible assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement

of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually

whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value-
in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-

generating unit).

2.

FREHHBOR ()

(@

HREWE (A1)

HAlh 25 2 1 Dol A

AT B A0 V8 A T A 25 ik
IR BT LR - DUk
Sl T 0 T i R 9 R
515 O ke % Y Bl (s 16 A P A7 7E
AT REC A A

— W RE K

—  EREEE R

— A F AR DR
Wit Jog 2 R AR B

il tH BUTATRZ 45 BF 2 - Bl & 4l
A 2 AT i (o] R o e Ah
v S T 2 MY A
I PRAF T Y IR S o )
A I SRR ) A AR AT A R DA
SE S 1 BUTL T (T 5

Al AT ] B

B Y ] e < A A L
B0 A LG8 AR (5 ]
M R o A T A B T (E
G (i N 2 o R AR
Sz e £ R W ) L S 7 o
JeR g 1) 5L I i 455 A A A A B
NGB L BUE o i 5 R
Y B 45 A I FF R B 8 ST
A | H A E A R B A A > H
Sy B SLE A B A B/ —
AL (RDBE i AR WA )
EEEx

RM Group Holdings Limited £l 5 3 42 [8] % 5 A5 BR 24 W) 83



f o B 985 A B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F —U4E=H =+ — [ L4

2.

84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

@

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying amount of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(@

@

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
a quarterly financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim Financial Reporting, in respect of each quarter of the
financial year. At the end of the quarterly period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see notes
2(i)(i) and (ii)).

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in

bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in

the period in which the reversal occurs.
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2.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

U)

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially measured at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts, except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fee payable, using the

effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Trade
and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are

stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the

consolidated statement of cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(o) Employee benefits
(i)  Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined

(i)

contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these

amounts are carried at their present values.

Equity-settled share-based payments

Share options granted to eligible employees

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the trinominal option pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
share options, the total estimated fair value of the share options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the

probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. When
share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to

retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(o) Employee benefits (Continued)
(ii)  Equity-settled share-based payments (Continued)

Share options granted to eligible participant providing services

to the Group

Share options issued in exchange for services are measured at
the fair values of the services received, unless that fair value
cannot be reliably measured, in which case the services
received are measured by reference to the fair value of the
share options granted. The fair values of the services received
are recognised as expenses, with a corresponding increase in
equity (capital reserve), when the counterparties render

services, unless the services qualify for recognition as assets.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment
or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by

having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic

possibility of withdrawal.

(p) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the

relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and
all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided that those differences relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal
of the deductible temporary differences or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be

utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future or, in the case of deductible

differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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2.

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends
are recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is

recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or the
Company has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions

are met:

—  in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group or the
Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the

asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

—  in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(@)

(r)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are carried at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of an outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of an outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the profit or loss as

follows:

(i)  Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the goods and the related risk
and rewards of ownership. Revenue is recognised after

deduction of any trade discounts and net of sales return.

(ii)  Provision of Chinese medical consultation services
Income from provision of Chinese medical consultation
services is recognised when services are provided.

(iii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective

interest method.
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2.

92

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.

Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are carried at
fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the

dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial
disposal of an interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified

to profit or loss.

Annual Report 2013/2014 4E i

2.

FERGFEOR ()

(s)

ShkiE S

A EE 19 91 W 50 5 40252 iy ) S i
B o DASNRERS B A9 LOW R BRI
e R ST 65 T ) E S 45 I 5,
Cl SR T

DAGI i JRE S JAS 55 1) JF B
BB RN 2 5 H I MESR G « LIS
Wt A T ERHE R JE B R AR
o JHY 78 S AT (EL S H R BE R, -

AN ERS 2 SERR S 5y HEAT 2
A1 HEE e 4 W46 2 T AR 4 3 5 s e »
B R D2 2 TEH i it IR 2 Wi B
FARA R HETC o R 4 2 T 5L 23
A A T i £ AR - NI BRI A1 B
Tt 2 i b BT o

H B i 1 S IRE (R B A4 [ i A
P 2 TR > B ROk RS
SET F I W 2 R P I RERY > B
W R e FAEHGHN TS B A F I
REBHOHE) > WAL FHEA A
JRE A 5% 55 1 A =t AR AR 2 BT A7 B 52
R FEN M ERLM -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o B 5 e 3 W
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

()

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)

is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or the Group’s parent.
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2.

94

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a

group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

v)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker (“CODM?”) for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of

business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be

aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities:

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

HKIFRIC)-Int 20

Transitional Guidance
Consolidated Financial Statements
Joint Arrangements
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
Fair Value Measurement
Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine

2.

3.

FRERBR ()

(v)
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Except as described below, the application of the other new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on

the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments to five standards
with consequential amendments to other standards and interpretations.
Among them, HKAS 1 has been amended to clarify that an opening
statement of financial position is required only when a retrospective
application of an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement or a
reclassification has a material effect on the information presented in the
opening statement of financial position. The amendments also remove the
requirement to present related notes to the opening statement of financial
position when such statement is presented. These amendments do not have
any material impact on the results of operations and financial position of the

Group for the years presented.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments require entities to present separately the items of other
comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit or loss in the
future if certain conditions are met from those that would never be
reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of other comprehensive
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in these financial statements has been modified
accordingly. In addition, the Group has chosen to use the new title
“statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income” as introduced

by the amendments in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. Those new disclosures are required for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off in accordance with HKAS
32, Financial Instruments: Presentation and those that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that covers
similar financial instruments and transactions, irrespective of whether the

financial instruments are set off in accordance with HKAS 32.

Annual Report 2013/2014 4E i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 3 S 205 ¥R I

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

TR BORZ B (4)

BTN SOOI - R AHT AT K AE B RT A i
JA 5 it Y R 3B A S T A AR 4 BT o8 1 4
JEE B B 5 R B BOIR UL e s A i B S
TR ARl RSB

A B A TR
E S SRR I €

A JEE B L0 95 T R 2 T >
2 0] I e R AR IR BT A e 50T HLe
WG RHERISS L SRT AR ET - LU U H
VL B 2 T 5 A
S IABIR SR B2 B R R A
WS AT E RSB MBI - bt
Sh o HRARIERT - 1 IV BER DL
S IR 2 50 A B T o S AT A A
I T 2 B4 A SR A AR L
WE K -

A vt A5 15T (BT A) Hoftu 2
TR H 2 5

7 B T R B MU HBR AR A 45 T e
=S P EXCE TR S
R IR H o SR B RO R A
PR 2 A A T W T E S B R 5 o Ak
A 2 199 5 R B A 2 T M
Frh E IS AT b2 Tl 2 2507 -
BRUEZ SN o A AT BME E RR 2 T o AR
TS B 4 2 o 2 4R T T 2 K A 2 T
EIR

v A 5 Y U 5 7 % (BT AR ) Bk
o — IR B o S LA

A7 B 165 AT RIS 48 B S R LB A
TR B LA = % 2T S T AR
T @RI 32 5% T LA 250
AL 2 BT A O RER AT TR - LR Z R
HUT 119 2 1 Bl 05 P SRR AL B e 7 6
O S B 5 TR 52 5 » T A o %5 B B
TR A AR e 4 32 SR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o B 5 e 3 W

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Continued)

The adoption of the amendments does not have an impact on these financial
statements because the Group has not offset financial instruments, nor has it
entered into master netting agreement or similar agreement which is subject

to the disclosures of HKFRS 7 during the periods presented.

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements relating to the preparation of consolidated
financial statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation-Special purpose entities.
It introduces a single control model to determine whether an investee should
be consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has power over the
investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee and the ability to use its power to affect the amount of those returns.

The adoption does not change any of the control conclusions reached by the

Group in respect of its involvement with other entities as at 1 April 2013.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F —U4E=H =+ — [ L4

98

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities. The
disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than those

previously required by the respective standards.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with a single
source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value measurements for both
financial instruments and non-financial instruments. The adoption of
HKFRS 13 does not have any material impact on the fair value

measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CAPITAL DISCLOSURES

Financial risk managements and policies

(a)

The Group’s major financial instruments include cash and cash

equivalents, pledged bank deposits, secured bank loans, trade and

other receivables, trade and other payables, amounts due to related

parties and obligations under finance lease. Details of the financial

instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated

with these financial instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk,

currency risk and interest rate risk. The policies on how to mitigate

these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors

these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group has adopted a policy of merely dealing with
creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of

financial loss from defaults.

In respect of trade and other receivables, in order to minimise
risk, the management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credit evaluations of the financial position and condition
of the customers and debtors of the Group are performed on all
customers and debtors requiring credit over a certain amount.
Debtors with overdue balances, which will be reviewed on a
case-by-case basis, are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally, the

Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CAPITAL DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial risk managements and policies (Continued)

(®)

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group’s exposure
to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the
industry and country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has a certain concentrations of credit risk of 63% (2013:
72%) of the total trade and other receivables was due from the
Group’s largest customer and 66% (2013: 74%) of the total
trade and other receivables due from the Group’s five largest

customers respectively.

The credit risk on balances of cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits is low as these balances are placed with

reputable financial institutions.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure of credit risk arising from trade and other receivables

are set out in note 19.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands, subject to Board approval.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term. The Group relies on bank borrowings as
a significant source of liquidity. As at 31 March 2014, the
Group has available un-utilised banking facilities of
approximately HK$12,888,000 (2013: HK$15,094,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CAPITAL DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Financial risk managements and policies (Continued)

(a)

(i)

o o B 5 e 3 W

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

4. s b R B R B A9 R (A
(a) 285 L g 2 B R SR (7

Liquidity risk (Continued) () TRE B B ()
The following table set out the Group’s remaining contractual N B F A # 5 AR 4 1 JE AT A
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s A% RN 45 E B 1
non-derivative financial liabilities based on contractual FIERA A B - 525 T
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments B TR G ) o B B B
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates & (A4 DA A AR 3R ()&
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date VR o IR R B AL H Y
the Group can be required to pay. BT FHE R ALEAT 0 K
A ZE AT SR e R E A 2y
" o
Specifically, for bank loans which contain a repayment on FLHBT S - B B A T i 4R AT
demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole A RETY AR A7 (e 01 MR R B Mk
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the I ERAT B A B A AT e mT
earliest period in which the entity can be required to pay, i.e. if HE ZE 7% 200 B B CED &
the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the RN AT ol L 0 1 ) K
loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for other RIVIRR A8 2 490 25 Bl i »
bank borrowings is prepared based on the scheduled repayment HoAh SR A7 15 82 00 21 99 H 4 47 HI)
dates. P TR E 2K H B Y o
As at 31 March 2014 P E A =H =1 —H
Morethan ~ More than Total
lyearbut  2yearsbut contractual
Within less than less than undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
BHFRIB
E—EE RREEE BeRE
JEZ K —4ER VINTES B A o) i 1
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T T T
Trade and other payables ~ FEfTARF S LAl
JEA 2R - 13,811 - - 13,811 13811
Secured bank loans AR ER 2,947 - - - 2,947 2,947
2947 13811 - - 16,758 16,758
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F —U4E=H =+ — [ L4

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4. s B R B R B A R (A
CAPITAL DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(a) Financial risk managements and policies (Continued) (a) B e i B R BOR (48
(ii)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (i)  IRBEEEBE ()
As at 31 March 2013 N FE—ZFE=ZH=1—H
More than More than Total
1 year but 2yearsbut  contractual
Within less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
BHRIEB
HE—EH  OBAWEHR  BERE
JEZ K —HER - PRWE DRIE Fiokil MR

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$'000
Tl Tt Tt Tl Tt Tl

Trade and other payables A5 B B At

JE R H0R - 13,202 - - 13,02 13,202
Obligations under finance ~ fil &l E 7R
lease - 48 - - 48 47
Secured bank loans AT K 3491 - - - 3491 3491
Amounts due to related JREAF B N\ £ 0R
parties 26,529 - - - 26,529 26,529
30,020 13,250 - - 43270 43269

Financial guarantees issued: 0 F BT B I :
Maximum amount B REH
guaranteed (note 33) (FfE33) 14,233 - - - 14,233 -
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CAPITAL DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

o o B 5 e 3 W

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

4. oo LA BE R B A B B ()

(a) Financial risk managements and policies (Continued) (a) Bl e 5 B R BOR (48
(ii)  Liquidity risk (Continued) () TRE B B ()
The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis of T FEME 5 A R SR R B K
bank loans with a repayment on demand clause based on B IR AT B R 5 K T e T
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements. 1) T 7 7 K IR (] 2 E HS 1% 21 388
The amounts include interest payments computed using AT - A RS aiEER &
contractual rates. As a result, these amounts are greater than R FFH WA B AR W
the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the I AR R LB H
above maturity analysis. Taking into account of the Group’s A T RESE SR | IR ] 460 R A
financial position, the directors of the Company do not IR o KEFE M AR B ) B
consider it probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to IR WLAR > A0S w3 R B R
demand immediate repayment. The directors of the Company AT AT A7 2 R R 222 0 1Y 155 ME
believe that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with R BEMEAS K o A0 W) 55 A0
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. 5 A BRSRAT B IO &R &
o e T S 1) L AR K H
7% o
Maturity Analysis — Term Loans subject to a repayment on FI W] H 7307 — IRIZ 5[] 2%
demand clause based on scheduled repayments 32 MR B SR AR S A R
Morethan ~ More than Total
1yearbut 2 yearsbut contractual
Within less than lessthan ~ More than undiscounted
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows
ER—EE RRmAEE AMBB 4
JEE K —4 AR BRI AT TR A
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk
31 March 2014 ZER-NEZA =4 —H - 633 633 1,494 412 3,172
31 March 2013 X -ZFEZH=1+—H - 633 633 1,819 720 3,805
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % %

—PEZA=+—HILEE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CAPITAL DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial risk managements and policies (Continued)

(iii)

4. BAWE IR BB B M B A B 8 (4
(a) SV A B R B (490)

Interest rate risk (i) A
The Group manages its interest rate exposure based on interest A A [ AR ) R K BT S DA
rate level and outlook as well as the potential impact on the PEIES T IE RN LI EIN
Group’s financial position arising from volatility. The Group LT HE M I TR AE S A I
currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy in T JE B o A B2 3] H5 IR SIf7 48
relation to fair value and cash flow interest rate risks. The &%{E&Iﬂ(ﬁ?ﬁi%ﬂ LB B
directors monitor the Group’s exposure on an ongoing basis A AT ] ) S PP BOR o #E SRR
and will consider hedging the interest rate should the need B A AR 0 JRU B o NI R
arises. ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%%%ﬁlﬂ%ﬁ@ °
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact $% A B (R
of rates changes on interest-bearing borrowing, predominantly SR B R = A B 1 5 2
with variable interest rate. TR R Z E B
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation A 4 3 1w B LR BRI RS
to variable-rate bank borrowings (see note 24 for details of B 1) B 4 v = A % Ja B (A B
these borrowings). RS - Rk EE24) -
(i) Interest rate profile @ FIEMN
The following table details the interest rate profile of the AR A AR Y £ A
Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period: ik SR G - M S
B
2014 2013
R e St 2
Weighted Weighted
average average
interest rate interest rate
TR ) & JIREF-2 ) 52
% HK$’000 % HKS$’000
T#T THIT
Variable rate FRME
borrowings:
Secured bank loans AP ERAT FE 3K 1.62% 2,947 1.89% 3,491
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CAPITAL DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial risk managements and policies (Continued)

(iii)  Interest rate risk (Continued)

(v)

(it)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates for
variable rate bank borrowings, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
(loss)/profit after tax and retained earnings by
HK$25,000 (2013: HK$29,000). Other components of
consolidated equity would not change in response to the

general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for variable rate
interest-bearing financial instruments in existence at that
date. The 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2013.

Currency risk

Exposure to currency risk

Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the foreign

exchange exposure. The Group is exposed to currency risk

primarily through purchases which give rise to payables that

are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other

than the functional currency of the operations to which the

transactions relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is

primarily United States dollar.

o o B 5 e 3 W

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 3 S 205 ¥R I

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4. B b R B R B A g (R
CAPITAL DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(a) Financial risk managements and policies (Continued) (a) B e i B R BOR (48
(iv)  Currency risk (Continued) (iv) B b ()

Exposure to currency risk (Continued) RS2 E R SR (AE)
The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end of N FEA A A A s 1 [ 4
the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised SH R LR B ) R LA
assets or liabilities that are denominated in a currency other IMEHREFHEM R EE KA
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. 5 I 7K A2 JEL B o B0 B R B
For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are M A0 - FLESI
shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot rate at o Ak e 2y i
the year end date. FRAT&5 H Y RV RE R 5 o

Exposure to foreign currencies

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B % 8 W R (AT R )
2014 2013
SEME Ek
USD’000 USD’000
T3t T3
Trade and other payables JRE AR H 3 B L At JRE A+ 3 3L (702) (459)
Net exposure arising from recognised Ol R 7 B B R A 1Y
assets and liabilities R 3 (702) (459)
Because the pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and H A 1 7T B 35 TT A 8 S 1 32 3
the United States dollar would be materially unaffected by any 270 50 HoAh B W B (A2 B
changes in movement in the value of the United States dollar I WAL ERZE
against other currencies, the Group’s exposure to currency risk e 2 N Ep N

is not significant.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4. oo LA BE R B A B B ()
CAPITAL DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(b) Capital management (b) BEAREM
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure that BB A > A Y BB LR
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while AL T A I BE A R R A AR
maximising the return to the owner through the optimisation of the S g A > [F] MR (L RS
debt and equity balance. The management reviews the capital HEZS GE I A Al i KAl - 48
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated BB B AR AR S R E A
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its 1B > T E ARG o A S
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share A BRI A8 B R IR IR A
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing BEAT B DA B B8 A 73 (5 ki [ 3R A
debt as it sees fit and appropriate. W PR A A o
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net gearing ratio. This AEHGFEEABUEREREAR -
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt/(cash) B PR T H A S I R R DA S S AR T
is calculated as total borrowings (including obligations under finance oo B (B4 WE R AER
lease and secured bank loans (as detailed in note 23 and 24 (L 55 7l L 5 R4S S AT K P 4R AT 4
respectively)) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is O(GEEE 2 PR BT 3E 23 )2 24) ) W
calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated statement of & LB S EYRE - BEARAE
financial position plus net debt, if any. DF B IR DL 2 i ) TR 25 | im0 55 1
HWNA) -
The net gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2013 and 2014 are WoFE—WEZA = —H K =F
as follows: —ZHEEH =T H s AEENFE
AR R
2014 2013
R LR ZE AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#oT THTT
Debts fE 2,947 3,538
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o e R EEEY (123,299) (15,708)
Net cash Bl i 8H (120,352) (12,170)
Total capital G R 168,131 38,551
Net gearing ratio FEEALR N/A N/A
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to AN ) Al E AT (] i e 2 ) 34 O E i Sy
externally imposed capital requirements. ANER TN ) E AL E o
(¢) Fair value (0 AFHE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at W EB—PE =A== —H E &R
cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair value —ZAEEA =B R AR
as at 31 March 2013 and 2014. S B A 51 B 4 T L 9 HE T (1

S (ESI TR S 5 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(@)

(i)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management
will increase the depreciation and amortisation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been

abandoned or sold.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing its value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, which requires
significant judgement relating to level of revenue and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of revenue and operating
costs. Changes in these estimates could have a significant impact on
the carrying amounts of the assets and could result in additional

impairment charge or reversal of impairment in future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 5. BH#EEHEEN (5

(CONTINUED)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) RS B BA IR 2% 0 2 AR Y (A8
(iti) Impairment of intangible assets with finite useful lives (i) A BRAE A1 2 T B D fE

The Group tests whether the intangible assets which have finite useful
lives have suffered any impairment whenever there is any indication
that the intangible assets have been impaired. The Group has made
estimations and assumptions in relation to the potential future cash
flows of identifiable intangible assets. This assessment involves
estimations and assumptions relating to potential future revenues,
appropriate discount rates and the useful lives of such assets. The
recoverable amounts of these intangible assets have been determined
based on the value-in-use calculations, which have been estimated
using discounted cash flow method. The directors consider that the
recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount of the intangible

assets and no impairment was recognised during the year.

Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains impairment allowance for doubtful accounts
based upon evaluation of the recoverability of the trade and other
receivables, where applicable, at the end of each reporting period.
The estimates are based on the ageing of the trade and other
receivables balances and the historical write-off experience, net of
recoveries. If the financial condition of the debtors were to

deteriorate, additional impairment allowance may be required.

A A AT B SR B SR S 2 BB
A ] Bl LA PR T 47 0 22 At
WY A5 HBUBUE - AT
il 1 AT W VT R AR B i AR
lah B ABE o BLRPAG I RO 5
ZBAE AR R 0 B R AT
I A R o w25 I A
< AT TE] SRR AR R T I B8 e O A
fili i 2 (o P AR (O o R
Ty o TR A 2 W] i < R T LR
T {E > #CAF S T R B (.

JE e 5 T 1 3 (e

A5 [ 7 5 A 1 D 4 A AR R
R K o Al R WA T (7 T ) 9 T
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AT T MR B B FE A B SRR I A
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 5. RBasdestbs (48)

(CONTINUED)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) At A B B PR 2 G S AR R (4
(v)  Write down of inventories v FEME

The management of the Group reviews its inventories at the end of
each reporting period and write-down inventories to net realisable
value. Management estimates the net realisable value for such items
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-
by-product basis at the end of each reporting period and make

allowance for obsolete items.

Current taxation and deferred taxation

Judgement is required in determining the amount of the provision for
taxation and the timing of payment of the related taxation. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

Deferred taxation relating to a certain temporary differences and tax
losses are recognised as management considers it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred taxation in the periods in which such estimate
is changed.

Provisions for goods return

The Group makes provisions for goods return based on a percentage
of sales and information on actual consumer returns of goods to
estimate return percentages. The provision is calculated based on
these factors and is adjusted for any fluctuations in the returns
estimated by management as of the end of each reporting period. The
estimate has been made on the basis of historical trends of return and
may vary as a result of new product components, altered
manufacturing process, other events affecting product quality or

change in consumer behavior.

In evaluating the adequacy of the provision, the Group prepares an
analysis to determine the reasons for unutilised provisions. If the
analysis determines that some carry forward provision amounts were
no longer appropriate based on actual claims experience, proper

adjustments will be made to release the over-accrued portion.
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ok £ S5 i A B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

TURNOVER 6. BEH
The Group is principally engaged in the sale, marketing and distribution of AR TR KA -
health and beauty supplements and products mainly in Hong Kong and Fe oy SR S DL R AR S o A
Taiwan. The products are sold and distributed under the proprietary brand B 72 o T DAAS 4B B R 4% B) B B
names of the companies within the Group and the private label brands 2 R DA B B HL A3 S AR LT B0 B 4K
specifically designated for the Distribution Facilitator. HEAT B T O3B o
Turnover represents the invoiced value of sales of health and beauty % SEREAE PR E 5 DA K % 2R A o SR Y
supplements and products, less sales returns and discounts for the year. An SR B SR AE - FOBRAE A B B AR 1) BT o
analysis of turnover is as follows: BN
2014 2013
R TR
HK$°000 HKS$’000
T THIT
Health supplements R A i 131,796 120,082
Beauty supplements and products FEAAH B 37,032 42,840
Others oAt 856 845
169,684 163,767

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 7, H fth W 25 S H At e A 130

2014 2013
TR TR EE
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt THsoc
Other revenue Hpd i
Bank interest income SRATRLE A 264 -
Total interest income on financial assets not at S FEF A TR AR 25 A BRI
fair value through profit or loss WA Y 1 RIS A R 264 -
Sundry income HeTEMA 554 70
818 70
Other net income oAl A A
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE 5 OB 2 ) B i A TR AR 2,118 -
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant HEYZE - MR MGk r iR),
and equipment Wi g v A (56) 1,246
Exchange (loss)/gain, net FE 6, (B548) i ds > 1H4H 170) 21
1,892 1,267
2,710 1,337
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % %

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is stated after charging/(crediting) the following:

—PEZA=+—HILEE

R 56 ij ¥t 1)
ok Bl 7T e 1L TS S0 BR(REA) DLR & JE R

R

2014 2013
e g UV —E—-=
HK$°000 HKS$’000
T#c THTT
(a)  Staff costs: (a) BTk :
Salaries, allowances, and other benefits Brdr o~ G A AR AR A
(including directors’ remuneration (note 9)) (L S (F5E9)) 43,790 35,536
Equity-settled share-based payments A Ex’fgz*ﬁ PUB 3 34T 2 Bl =2 7,364 -
Mandatory provident fund contributions 50 B 4 kK 1,520 1,297
52,674 36,833
(b)  Other items: (b) HAIEH :
Auditors’ remuneration A% BT 1,088 400
Cost of inventories (note 1) TEEA (BHsE 1) 39,692 34,757
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment W2~ WE M e 1,727 1,467
Amortisation of intangible assets STV 57 -
Provision for goods returns R 1,369 1,305
Exchange loss/(gain), net T SLRs 1R, (e ds) » 138 170 21
Operating lease charges KA TR BB 407 106
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries L1 AR 2 ) A i AR TR (2,118) -
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEYE - R A2
plant and equipment Fa1E, () 56 (1,246)
Research and development cost W8S B < 2,018 2,074
(¢) Finance costs: (¢) MhERA
Bank overdraft interest SRATIE A B 14 -
Finance charge on obligations under ol L R AR 1 il O B S
finance lease 1 6
Interest on bank loans /Eﬁ/‘ﬁfli W BRI
wholly repayable within five years §E A 36 -
Interest on bank loans not wholly EﬁAﬂﬁf NS %ﬂfé{%ﬂ’ﬂ
repayable within five years A 53 104
Total interest expenses on financial liabilities S I T E SRR 45 A REY
not at fair value through profit or loss B B R R B S R 104 110

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank loans, including term loans
which contain a repayment on demand clause, in accordance with the agreed AR
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. For the year
ended 31 March 2014, the interest on bank loans which contain a repayment

on demand clause amounted to HK$89,000 (2013: HK$104,000). B
104,000 #570) ©

Note: FifaE -

(i) For the year ended 31 March 2014, cost of inventories includes HK$4,964,000 (2013: @)

HK$4,685,000) relating to staff cost, depreciation and provision for goods return,
which amount is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately

above for each of these types of expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o B 5 e 3 W

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 9. HHRATEAKRMNE
OFFICER’S REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive officer’s remunerations disclosed pursuant to RO TG (556225 ) FE£ 115578
section 78 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance i > 3l 22 2 RN ARG (55 32%5) 55 161
(Cap.622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong e B2 00 5 AT B EN & T -
Companies Ordinance (Cap.32) is as follows:
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BREFZ-WE=ZH=1+—HILFE
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled  Retirement
Discretionary  and benefits  share-based scheme
Fees bonuses in kind payments contributions Total
VLIRSS 31
Foo il DRGSR
Ha WA RENER 2% ik At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T Tl T T T Tl
Chairman, chief executive officer T ITHAHER
and executive director HiTHEH
Mr. Chan Yan Tak B - - 1,300 139 13 1,952
Executive directors HirEH
Mr. Wong Mau Tai KR = 60 740 1,390 15 2,205
Mr. Foo Chi Ming (Appointedas ~ f§E W] () ~%——4F
non-executive director on ANATSHEZTE
16 August 2012 and AT B
re-designated as executive “Z =L ATAH
director on 16 July 2013) UL L ITHSE) = = 921 1,390 10 2,321
Non-executive director FHfTEE
Madam Tsang Pui Man E 240 - - - - 240
Independent non-executive directors M/ FH {7 EH
Mr. Wei Jianan WHE (R F =4
(Appointed on 24 September 2013)  JLH Z /4 HEZAT) 125 - - 139 - 264
Professor Ng Ka Ming REL (R _F—=F
(Appointed on 24 September 2013)  JUA —+ U A HZE(T) 125 - - 139 - 264
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul BB 7 (=& —=4F
(Appointed on 24 September 2013)  JLA ~ U HER(T) 125 = = 139 - 264
615 60 3,461 3,336 38 7,510
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F —U4E=H =+ — [ L4

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 9. FHFRATBAEME (H)
OFFICER’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BECZ=4H=A=1+—HI4EE
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled Retirement
Discretionary ~ and benefits  share-based scheme
Fees bonuses in kind payments  contributions Total
B B pmpft BIKEH
e ML REWEF ZHX sk Mgt

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt T

Chairman, chief executive officer FH - THAERLK

and executive director HirEH
Mr. Chan Yan Tak ok S A - - - - - -
Executive directors HirE#H
Mr. Wong Mau Tai R R - 60 720 - 15 795
Mr. Foo Chi Ming (Appointed as B (R = F— 4

non-executive director on AATABEZRES

16 August 2012 and FEPATE S R

re-designated as executive ZER =LA TNE

director on 16 July 2013) TR ES) - - - - - -
Non-executive director FHfrESH
Madam Tsang Pui Man K il % - - - - - -

- 60 720 - 15 795

During the year, no director of the Company has waived any emoluments AR ) B A DA AR S AT AT T T A
and no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to any of the S [0 7 8 1] AT ] 28 2 S A5 OB A AT AT T 65
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as A T A8 5 I A7 4 [ 58 A AR 4 B IR 17 3%
compensation for loss of office. JEih PR A £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

10.

Details of the emoluments paid to the five highest paid individuals

o o B 5 e 3 W

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

mE B AL

If] i 4% e v 38 N (BT 2 R FLAt i B)

(including directors and other employees) are as follows: i AT EN S RERE R

2014 2013
R4 oE—=

HK$’000 HK$’000
T THTT
Discretionary bonuses 1% fE AL 200 100
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Brd o~ EEHE CE AR A 5,281 4,475
Equity-settled share-based payments DR 5 53 LA TR A3 S A 2 BA 52 5,421 -
Retirement scheme contributions IRREEE 68 70
10,970 4,645
Number of directors EEIN 3 1
Number of employees fE 8 A% 2 4
5 5

During the year, no emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals

(including directors and other employees) as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation of loss of office and no bonus was

paid or payable by the Group to the five highest paid individuals based on

the performance of the Group.

The emoluments of individuals other than directors with the highest

emoluments are within the following bands:

AR S B8 1) 4 e A L (L
B HARAE 5 ) ST 1F 2 A A 52 T ) 42
JE B8 5 | i A A AR T () 5 g e A £
DS N SUTE S IDE R o TN

LS AT AR ATAEAL -

REH AL (NEFEE) N R

AR

2014 2013
R R

Number of individuals N
HK$Nil upto HK$1,000,000 F U564 1,000,000 H# T - 3
HK$1,000,001 upto HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 # 7T % 1,500,000 ¥ 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 upto HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 ¥ 75 % 2,500,000 #5 7T 2 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

11. TAXATION

(a)  Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other (a)

11. Bl
ZEA RS S oAt 2 v i 25 2K TR ) S

comprehensive income represents:

Bids :

2014 2013

TR Y4 oF—=
HK$’000 HK$°000
TH#oT THsoT

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax B A BEIE — s R 5B

Provision for the year S A A 5,011 7,185
Underprovision in respect of prior years DIEAR BE 3R R 2 874 -
Deferred taxation (note 27) IEAEBLIA (P 5 27) 295 35
6,180 7,220

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) of the

estimated assessable profit for the year.

No provision for profits tax in the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin

Islands (“BVI”) and Taiwan have been made as the Group has no

income assessable for tax in these jurisdictions for the years ended 31

March 2013 and 2014.

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting profit at the

applicable tax rates:

AR E DR — AR R F—UAE = A
=t —HIEERN BB
5T R B 5 R W 16.5% R1HE -

HRAEEAEE T =F K _F
—PUAE = = BRI AE
BSREE - SR Ll 5 X ARG
FEATRERRBLA - HIE e e 55 R 75
HE A M A B A -

o8V B S B 4  F B  H O  r
M BRI

2014 2013
e S 1 S e
HK$’000 HK$°000
R THEIC
Profit before taxation i i i ) 447 46,484
Notional tax on profit before taxation, B8 AT i 1 1) B G B T > s A AE
calculated at the rates applicable to profits 25 e 1) R [ ) 78 B R T
in the tax jurisdictions concerned 55 7,670
Tax effect on non-taxable income YRE R B BT 22 288 (462) (483)
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses ENGEi B AN A 4,522 613
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised e RR BT e 18 1 B 5 R 1,037 224
Others HoAty 202 (758)
Special tax deduction FREPRBIH T (40) (40)
Underprovision in respect of prior years DA AR B A 3 S A2 874 -
Utilisation of tax losses not B i A R TR B T 1R
previously recognised 8) (6)
Actual tax expense EEBLIE S 6,180 7,220
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o B 5 e 3 W

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

11. BiJH (4)

(b)  Tax recoverable in the consolidated statement of financial position (b)  AEEAHSIR I A A AT i [ B JE g
represents:
2014 2013
B4R —E—=

HK$’000 HK$°000

T THsIT

At beginning of the year 44 (16) 21,076

Provision for the year ESNPNE ] 5,011 7,185

Underprovision in respect of prior years DIE AR FE IS4 2 874 -
Tax paid e AL (8,087) (28,277)
At end of the year HR (2,218) (16)

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company

2. AAEHEA NEMNOBE), &

A

AN F A N HEAS AR (R R/ 1 A 4R

includes a profit of approximately HK$22,317,000 (2013: loss of &AM #22,317,000 8 70 (= F — =4F : fHE
approximately HK$184,000) which has been dealt with in the summary of #) 184,000 7T > T A AL Al Z MH & R
financial information of the Company (note 38). W 2 e (5 38)
DIVIDENDS 13. B8
2014 2013
e g IV —F—=
HK$°000 HK$°000
R THTT
Interim dividend declared and paid by Wisdom Come /5 55 2 £ |8 47 B 2\ 7] 5t
Medical Group Limited in respect of the year ended ~— # % ~F— =4 =H =+—H
31 March 2013 (note i) R4 B2 E IR A4 B BR
(BfF5E) - 20,000
Final dividend declared and paid by Wisdom Come {7k 58 2 45 [#] 45 FR A 71 ik
Medical Group Limited in respect of the year ended ~— #% ~&F— "4 =H =+—H
31 March 2012 (note i) R4S “*JEE’JEE%‘HH&LU
(B 5E) - 20,000
- 40,000
Notes: BT

@) The dividends represented those declared by the Company’s subsidiary, Wisdom
Come Medical Group Limited, to its shareholders prior to the Reorganisation. The
rate of dividends and the number of shares ranking for dividends are not presented as
such information is not meaningful having regard to the purpose of this report.

(i) At a meeting held on 24 June 2014, the Board recommended the payment of a
special dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary share (totaling HK$20,600,000) for the
year ended 31 March 2014. This proposed dividend is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting and is not reflected as
dividend payable in the financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation
of retained earnings for the year ending 31 March 2015.

@

(i)

A B AR AR 2 WA 28 w7 T B A A
B ) o AL 1) LB IR RS, o i
Jige L ] 4 R M 5 M 03 ) A 4 T
FREEAK > MO IR o

TE T —PUAEN A 0 H i —1F ek ko
HREGERREE _F - EZA =+ —H
AR AR R 9 R BB E 2 A IR 4 R 0.04 s
JE (4 3£20,600,000 %5 7T ) o M 5 B S h
JRCSRTA T e AR SR AR o b IET@
A S 4R 2 v R IR S TR e s R AE
—HAEZA=Zt—HZAEENRE mﬂm—
A e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

14.

15.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic and dilute (loss)/earnings per share for the year ended 31 March
2014 and 2013 is calculated based on the loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 in the amount of HK$5,733,000
(2013: profit of HK$39,264,000) and the weighted average of 446,471,780
ordinary shares (2013: 385,400,000) in issue during the year, calculated as
follows:

14.

B (EE), B
BE_EZ 2R FE-NFE=ZH =1 —
H k4> A ml B B B A KW (O
1),/ BRI TR R AN B AT A EAL B
F—4EZH=+—H IHEE 5,733,000
Bt (®E - F =A==+t HIR4EE
B H1 39,264,000 5 95) > LA B 4E R AR A
446,471,780 (—F—=4E=H=1+—HA
385,400,000 1) B 854735 48 B A 1 35 3T
B AR

2014 2013
B4R TR AR
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April AP H — H 2 BT 48 - -
Effect of issue at date of incorporation (note 28(a)) i’ s: T H B 8847 ey & 2
(B 51 28()) 10 10
Effect of share issue under Reorganisation MR PR A BT 84T Iy 2 S 2
(note 28(d)) (B E 28(d)) 999,990 999,990
Effect of capitalisation issue (note 28(e)) EARACEEAT 2 R (51 28(e)) 384,400,000 384,400,000
Effect of share issue under placing (note 28(f)) AR T EE AT I A 2 5228 (I 5 28(F)) 61,071,780 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares A=A = B 23S R RE T 9
at 31 March 446,471,780 385,400,000

The weighted average number of ordinary shares at 5 December 2011 had
been adjusted for the 10 shares, 999,990 shares and 384,400,000 shares
issued at date of incorporation, pursuant to the Reorganisation and the
capitalisation issue which took place upon the completion of the placing of
the Company’s shares, respectively, which were assumed to have occured
on 1 April 2012.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2014
does not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options
during the year ended 31 March 2014 since their exercise would result in a
decrease in loss per share.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, diluted earnings per share equals to basic
earnings per share as there was no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior to
June 2012). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y3k ~ Wb K uk i

Leasehold
land and
buildings
held for own Furniture,
use carried Leasehold Plantand  fixtures and Motor
atcost improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
AT
FefE B R
i =Ew ) R HE
Bt HERE B R Rkt K At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
Cost A
1 April 2012 ZE-ZHFNA—H 15,030 1,824 570 1,207 259 18,890
Additions RE - 1,671 108 958 149 2,886
Disposals e (915) - - ) - 919)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 T—4$ H=4—H
“ER-ZFENA—H 14,115 3,495 678 2,161 408 20,857
Additions ﬁﬁ - 563 253 464 701 1,981
Disposals ik - - - (16) (259) (275)
At 31 March 2014 B oE—NE=H=+—H 14,115 4,058 931 2,609 850 22,563
Accumulated depreciation HEthiE
1 April 2012 “E-THENA—H 77 685 318 703 104 2,587
Charge for the year FRTE 403 611 132 257 64 1,467
Written back on disposals 6 IR ] (63) - - 2) - (65)
At31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 W= —=4F=H=1—H
K=F—=FMNHA—H 1,117 1,296 450 958 168 3,989
Charge for the year AR 379 22 148 380 9 1,127
Written back on disposals 5 IR ) - - - ®) (181) (189)
At 31 March 2014 BREFE-NEZA=+—H 1,496 2,018 598 1,330 85 5,527
Carrying amount W T R
At31 March 2014 BEE-WE=A=+—H 12,619 2,040 333 1,279 765 17,036
At31 March 2013 WoF-=H=A=1—H 12,998 2,199 28 1,203 240 16,868

The leasehold land and buildings held for own use are located in Hong Kong
under medium term leases. As at 31 March 2014, the Group has pledged its
land and buildings with carrying amount of HK$6,123,000 (2013:
6,307,000) to a bank to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note
24).

The carrying amount of motor vehicles included an amount of HK$104,000
in respect of an asset under finance lease as at 31 March 2013. No asset is
held under finance lease as at 31 March 2014.

P77 7 s ARYE P A FRfE A A& -
BT O I T — R AERAT > E A A
TS ERAT RlE AR IR S o LR M —F
—E=HA=+—H 46,123,000 # 70 (%
— =4 16,307,000 50) (FtEE24) -

PR G B A R ==
A =Z+— B IR 45 104,000 # 7T © 14—
F—PAEZA =+ —H o BT ] & AR
BREMERRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F —U4E=H =+ — [ L4

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HEE &
HK$’000
T
Cost BAR
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 WoFE-CFMH—H S 2R = =H =1
K =FE—=FMA—H -
Additions NE 800
At 31 March 2014 e e L R 800
Accumulated amortisation ey
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 W_E—-_FNUH—H ZF—-=4F=H=1—H
BB A —H -
Charge for the year SR RS 57
At 31 March 2014 WoFE—E=H=+—H 57
Carrying amount BRI A
At 31 March 2014 WoFE—E=H=1+—H 743
At 31 March 2013 W —EFEH =T —H -
Intangible assets represent the product development rights acquired by the ST A AR A PR B B R
Group.
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “administrative AF NS A TATBUB 52
expenses’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INVENTORIES

(a)

(b)

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position

o o B 5 e 3 W

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

18. F#&

(@ AREMBIRILERAN N LR

comprise:
2014 2013
e oK ZE =
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#o0 T
Raw materials JEAHL 13,861 10,748
Finished goods B 3,606 2,017
17,467 12,765
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense (b)  ERERE A B SIEEA 45 % HoAb

and included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income is as follows:

ST R R A R EFATWR :

2014 2013
TR YR —F =

HK$’000 HK$’000

T¥HIT Fisoc

Carrying amount of inventories sold LB 7 1 1 R T (E 38,232 34,118

‘Write-down of inventories oA & 2,388 1,147
Reversal of write-down of inventories (note i) HUB7F B 888 0] (B3 1) (928) (508)

39,692 34,757

Note:

1) The amount was resulted from the utilisation of obsolete inventories that
were written down in prior years.

=
2

() AREER A BN O R TE AR B

BB -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F —U4E=H =+ — [ L4

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19, JRE IR w5k B HL i JRE WAk I

2014 2013

—EemE

HK$’000 HK$’000

T Tt

Trade receivables JRE AT B K 17,336 24,090
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts Bk R - _
17,336 24,090

Other receivables oAt JRE g T 1,087 112
Loans and receivables B R FE W KT 18,423 24,202
Prepayments TEAT 3,437 812
Deposits a4 3,966 7,558
7,403 8,370

25,826 32,572

All of the other receivables apart from HK$3,966,000 (2013: % 3,966,000 # T ( —F—=4F : 3,601,000 #

HK$3,601,000) are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense

within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables (net of
allowance for doubtful debts) with the following ageing analysis

presented based on invoice date as at the end of the reporting period:

19.

OB W e sk B Lt B Wk I (70
HR it 2 T

(a)

TRERE WA A - EBORR R oAb
JEE WA T L 4 2 MBSO R (1R R
AR ) 122 3 5L 1 J0) 52 97 19 R % 20 A
wr

2014 2013

e LTS SR

HK$’000 HK$°000

T#T THTT

0-30 days 0% 30 H 8,586 21202
31-60 days 31260 H 8,133 2413
61-90 days 61%90 H 30 11
91-180 days 91 & 180 H 46 290
181-365 days 181 365 H 265 57
Over 365 days i 365 H 276 17
17,336 24,090

Trade receivables are normally due within 0-90 days from the date of
billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note

4@)(0).

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off
against trade receivables directly (see note 2(i)). For the years ended
31 March 2014 and 2013, no impairment is recognised in respect of

trade receivables.

(b)

JRE SR B — s 5 5 B ARE R0 2290
H NS - AL EESBORN#E—
TR A R 4a) ) ©

B AL Bk ok

JRE AT SR S LA 4R 75 2 P A IR IR A
M o BRI AR SR I8 i el R Y T
PEARK > MAEREIL T > WEE R TS
LA L SR A (SRR RE 26))
WE DR -ER R A
Zb— BRI o A R R R
TR (E «
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)
(¢) Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually

19, MR sk B HC A Wk I (%6

() AR URALE WK
B A {1 B ] A 14 L 9l 0 B

nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: AR A IR 3 AT 4n T
2014 2013
e
HK$°000 HK$’000
T THIT
Neither past due nor impaired 3 40 1 A i 16,749 23,726

Past due but not impaired CL s AR R B E

Less than 1 month past due s A 1 22 72
1 to 3 months past due a1 % 3E A 24 218
3 months to 1 year past due w3 H 2 14 265 57
Over 1 year past due ) 1 4T 276 17
17,336 24,090

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide

range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o B 5 e 3 W

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 March 2013, the banking facilities including short-term bank
borrowings, if any, of the Group were secured by a bank deposit amounting
to HK$5,000,000. None of the banking facilities was utilised during the year
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013. Since the banking facilities were to provide
short-term bank borrowings if necessary, the pledged bank deposit was
classified as current asset. The pledged bank deposits were fully released
during the year ended 31 March 2014.

The interest rate on the deposit was 0.01% per annum for the year ended 31
March 2013.

20. CHEHERAT K

MoE-ZF=A=4—H GFEA%HE
J A ERAT i B () A T A9 SRAT il B TS DA
SRAT 7 AR IS () SR 4T 77 3K 5,000,000 #
e R_F—=HERF _F-NFE=A
= H A R0 B AT AT SR AT A o
A SRAT T 2 AT IR R A I SR AT
Bl AR RAT A R S T B E
EHMRITAERER - F -NE=NA
=t H LR

BEZEZ -=H=A=+—-HIL4EE  1F
AR R 2 E ] 0.01 JE o

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. HERBESFEY

2014 2013

ZER A ZE—ZAE

HK$’000 HKS$’000

T THT

Cash at bank and on hand AT M T B & 63,219 15,628

Bank deposits SRATAER 60,080 80
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated R EEA BABSIR I S
statement of financial position and LGABlamERN

consolidated statement of cash flows B4 MBI ESEY 123,299 15,708

The interest rates on the cash at bank and deposits with banks ranged from
0% to 1.1% (2013: 0% to 0.01%) per annum.

AT B RARATAE SR AR M A0S 2 1.1
JE (& — =4 0 0.01JE) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F —U4E=H =+ — [ L4

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 292, JE MRk S LAt JE £5) 3k JH

2014 2013

SEoWE SRS

HK$’000 HK$°000

T THsoT

Trade payables JEAST B K 3,985 3,013
Salary and welfare payables JREAS 37 4 B AR A 4,299 3.317
Accrued advertising expenses JEFT R A B S 3,697 4,346
Other payables and accruals FoAb REAT R B S| 2% 1,830 2,526
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost T B A R B 13,811 13,202

TR IS - REA IR R B 2 0 )

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented based on

invoice dates as at the end of the reporting period: 2R HRE BT
2014 2013
e IV TR AR
HK$’000 HKS$°000
T THTT
0-30 days 0%E30H 1,234 688
31-60 days 31260 H 1,091 497
61-90 days 61290 H 649 259
91-180 days 91 180 H 488 278
181-365 days 181 % 365 H 242 15
Over 365 days 365 H 281 1,276
3,985 3,013
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

23. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE 23. W& M E R
Total minimum lease Present value of
payments minimum lease payment
o (I 4 S T (A 4 A BLE
2014 2013 2014 2013
SHWE SE-SE SFNE SFS
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt THTT TH#T THTT
Amounts payable: JEAT 45
Within one year —4ER = 48 - 47
After 1 year but within 2 years —AERE N - - - -
- 48 - 47
Less: Finance charges W g - (1)

Present value of finance lease JEEASH Rl G A B Y B

payable - 47

Less: Portion classified as B BB & S
current liabilities = (47)
Non-current portion FE B I - -
The finance lease obligations are secured by a motor vehicle of the Group Rl AR B R AE T DAAS 4 B — W R AR
with a carrying amount as at 31 March 2013 of HK$104,000. Interest rate is HATZE—=4F=HA=+—HWERHEL
fixed at 3.5% per annum. No arrangement has been entered into for 104,000 #E T o [FEFEFIE B 3.5)H o #FE
contingent rental payment for the year ended 31 March 2013. The F—ZHE ==+ —HIEEMETT VA
obligations under a finance lease were fully settled during the year ended 31 BA AR FH 4 ATk 22 4k - B E R IE T
March 2014. REE_F-WEZH =+ HIEFER
BEAT -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

24. SECURED BANK LOANS

The analysis of the carrying amount of secured bank loans is as follows:

24, A EAT HK

A AP ERAT AR EE A AT A0 F

2014 2013
R AE xR =
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#oT THsoT
Carrying amount of bank loans that contain I 245 I B R R Ak B
a repayment on demand clause: AT RAIRTE
Repayable within one year N — RN E IR 559 544
Repayable after one year TR — R AR
(shown under current liabilities) GIERE &) 2,388 2,947
2,947 3,491
As at 31 March 2014, total interest-bearing bank loans of approximately AZE—AE=ZA =+ —H > sHERITE
HK$2,947,000 (2013: HK$3,491,000) were due for repayment as follows: AR B #)2,947,0009 o0 ( . F — =
3,491,000 7C) M FH T
2014 2013
ZE A TR
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THTT
Portion of term loans due for repayment JEA — A IR 1 2 1 A A B R
within one year 559 544
Term loans due for repayment after one year (note): 2 i —4F- 1% 8 # 19 A7 JH 82K (M sk) -
After 1 year but within 2 years —EREREN 575 559
After 2 years but within 5 years T AFAZAH 4R 18 1,410 1,691
Over 5 years FAERL | 403 697
2,388 2,947
2,947 3,491

Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as stipulated in the

respective loan agreements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

24. SECURED BANK LOANS (CONTINUED)

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of covenants. If the
Group were in breach of the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become repayable on demand. In addition, certain of the Group’s bank loan
agreements contain clauses which give the lender the right at its sole
discretion to demand immediate repayment at any time irrespective of
whether the Group has complied with the covenants and met the scheduled

repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note 4(a)
(ii). As at 31 March 2014, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2013: Nil).

All of the secured bank loans, including amounts repayable on demand, are

carried at amortised cost.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the Group’s variable-rate borrowings is carrying at interests
at 2.5% per annum below the Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate of Chong Hing
Bank during year ended 31 March 2013 and 2014.

As at 31 March 2014, the secured bank loans of the Group are secured by
the leasehold land and buildings with carrying amount of HK$6,123,000
(2013: HK$6,307,000) (note 16). Such banking facilities amounting to
HK$9,515,000 (2013: HK$9,515,000) were utilised to the extent of
HK$2,947,000 (2013: HK$3,491,000). The pledged assets will be released
upon the settlement of the relevant bank borrowings. For other banking

facilities, refer to note 20.

24, A IKMEITE (48)

P A7 SRAT Rl B XY IR AT B o M AN
B > PR IR SRR -
B o A S I A I ARATT B K T A A K
8 R HEE ) 2 Y 1 2 SR A S T B R
SR o TS A T A R R R
W EATIR AT -

A AR ) ) B R LR A B L S s o K
A A8 SR T 3 < SR 1 A5G SR B 5 4(a)
() e RZE—IE=H=+—H  &EH
S AR S A T ) A B 3l (R —=
A AE) o

Jir A A A R AT R (LA R ZOR R 1Y
R T B A AR

WE R ZHFR R -NE=A=1+—
R AR > A8 M7 B0 50 10 B R R 3R (R
SE ] A 49 %) Fy A BLERAT Vs T foc 8 L AE A
R 2.5 5 o

AL A PP AR AT B DA A B A
b R MRS - AR (R % —
F=ZH =1 —HA6,123,000 00 (—F—=
4F 16,307,000 7T) (FsE16) o A BISATRL
& F—AE=H =+ —H %9,515,000
Wt (& — =4 1 9,515,000 o0) » H
EBAESERN _F—WE=H=+—H%
2,947,000 %% G ( = F — = 4F : 3,491,000 ¥
TC) o w%SEHCAT A A AR B AR AT 1 B
TEAE T DA B o LA SR AT il 5 19 T B
5120 °
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F —U4E=H =+ — [ L4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 25. WEATBR N\ L3k 0H
2014 2013
Ry R
HK$°000 HKS$°000
Tt THTT
Amount due to a director JEAT— 2 3K
— Chan Yan Tak (note 32) — BRRETE (5T 32) - 29
Amount due to ultimate holding company JRRE A} 5 5 B ) R T
— Able Island Group Limited (“Able Island”) — Able Island Group Limited
(note 32) (I Able Island ]) (Fff5E 32) = 26,500
- 26,529

The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

A B RS AT ~ G S B U R AR

26. PROVISIONS 26. #1#

Goods return

from customers

%R

HK$°000

THIT

At 1 April 2012 WA —H 860
Additional provisions made B 1,305
Provisions utilised B (1,127)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 B oE-ZEZA = A R EFE AN A —H 1,038
Additional provisions made BT A 1,369
Provisions utilised BV s (1,073)
At 31 March 2014 N_E—E=H=+—H 1,334

The Group cannot reliably estimate the amounts that may eventually be
settled after more than 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

Thus, the whole amount was classified as current.

Note: The provision for goods return from customers represents the present value of the
directors’ best estimate of future outflow of economic benefits that will be required
under the Group’s obligations under the goods return policy. The estimate has been
made on the basis of historical trends on goods return.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

27, EFEBIH AR

The deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement (@)  FAGEA BRI R R A 8 A B TH £
of financial position and the movements during the year are as PSS NE T iR (T
follows:
Accelerated tax depreciation o 228 B T A
2014 2013
ZER—P4E e
HK$’000 HK$°000
TH#T THsoC
At beginning of the year AT 71 36
Charged to profit or loss ERCEREII]4 295 35
At end of the year FER 366 71
Deferred tax assets in respect of the unused tax losses carried forward (b) A B & ok B RS s 48 11 1R SE B T

are to be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the unused tax losses can be

utilised.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of the tax
losses of HK$9,797,000 (2013: HK$9,263,000) for the year ended 31
March 2014 due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The

unrecognised tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

BRI HARAT 40 JE SR s A A
RS R B BB s 1R R e 5

WE-F-WE=HA=+—H K&
i A 89,797,000 6 (—F—=
9,263,000 %5 7C) 14 ol 75 i 48 e 52 40 4E
BLTEE e > Ji K] 2 46 35 T 00 R 2 3
TR o T e FR BB G AT A PR
A o
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F —U4E=H =+ — [ L4

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. A
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary Nominal
shares of shares of value
HK$0.10 HK$0.01 ordinary
per share per share shares
Bepr A et A
B B fE B B fE
0.1970 00150  HEBHAE
Notes HK$
o T
Authorised: EE -
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and A —F— 44U H—H ~
1 April 2013 ZE-ZFEEHA=ET1T—H
M= F—ZFHA—H (a) 3,800,000 - 380,000.00
Share subdivision Rt 4R 4 (b) (3,800,000) 38,000,000 -
Increase in authorised share capital 0 8 AR B () - 962,000,000  9,620,000.00
At 31 March 2014 WoFE—WE=H=+—H - 1,000,000,000 10,000,000.00
Issued and fully paid: E#ETREE
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and A= F— "4 H—H ~
1 April 2013 R -ZHEEH=ET—H
M= —=FPUH—H (@) 1 - -
Share subdivision A 45 4 (b) (1 10 -
Issue of ordinary shares pursuant to R 5 8 4 %547 () 35 40
the Reorganisation (d) - 999,990 9,999.90
Credit the 10 shares in issue as AR5 T A 1 14
fully paid pursuant to the 10 I 28847 B SR A
Reorganisation (d) - - 0.10
Capitalisation issue EAAL AT (e) — 384,400,000  3,844,000.00
Tssuance of new shares by way of R 5 i 5 5 1 7
placing (f) - 129,600,000 1,296,000.00
At 31 March 2014 W oFE—WE=H=+—H - 515,000,000  5,150,000.00
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

28. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

®

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 December 2011. As at
the date of incorporation, the Company has an authorised share capital of
HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000 shares of HK$0.10 each, one share of which
was allotted and issued nil paid to the subscriber to the Company. On 5 December
2011, the one share held by the subscriber was transferred to Able Island.

Pursuant to the sole shareholder resolutions of the Company dated 16 September
2013, the share capital of the Company was subdivided in such manner that every
existing share of HK$0.1 was subdivided into ten shares of HK$0.01 each so that the
authorised share capital of the Company is HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder passed on 24 September
2013, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from HK$380,000
divided into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each to HK$10,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each by the creation of a further 962,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each. All shares ranking pari passu with the existing shares in all
respects.

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 23 September 2013 entered into
between the Company as purchaser and Able Island as vendor, the Company
acquired from Able Island 11 shares of Noble State Holdings Limited (“Noble
State”), representing the entire issued share capital of Noble State, at a consideration
of HK$38,551,000 on 23 September 2013, which was fully satisfied by (i) the
Company allotting and issuing 999,990 shares credited as fully paid up to Able
Island; and (ii) the Company crediting as fully paid at par the ten nil paid shares held
by Able Island.

Pursuant to the written resolution of the sole shareholder passed on 24 September
2013, conditional on the share premium account of the Company being credited as a
result of the Placing as defined in the Prospectus dated 30 September 2013, upon the
recommendation of the Directors, the sum of HK$3,844,000, being part of the
amount which would then be standing to the credit of the share premium account of
the Company be capitalised and applied in paying up in full 384,400,000 shares to
be allotted credited as fully paid at par to Able Island.

On 11 October 2013, the Company issued 129,600,000 shares of HK$0.01 each at a
price of HK$1.07 per share by way of placing to selected institutional, professional
and other investors. Net proceeds from such issues amounted to HK$128,076,000
(after offsetting expenses directly attributable to the issue of shares of
HK$10,596,000), out of which HK$1,296,000 and HK$126,780,000 were recorded
in share capital and share premium respectively.

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

()

28. A (48)

Wt

ARAFR T ——F T HAHEHSHS
SRS o AL FE MRS B AR E AT
FE B 75 380,000 5 7T 43 443,800,000 i A5
T 0.10 75 TG A9 Ay - 37 1) 58 B N CHRL 9 A4 8%
TR K A B 4 RO 2w N ) e g BB AT
h— R By - A F——F+ A
. H R IR — R ) B 5 T Able
Island °

HRAEIA =T — ZAEJUH o5 H v — BRI
FE YRS AR FIRAB N I (0.1
5 TG 1 BUA B A0 43 B 2+ B BT (. 0.01 #5
TEI B I 7 AR o AT HRAR - AR A
258 A 74 380,000 95 7T » 43 £ 38,000,000 i
Bty - A BT (E0.01 5 7T -

MR — AR —F—=4F L] PO B
I T R R o R 4 A 41 962,000,000 i
B RTEE 0.01 # 7T 9 B4R O 4577 1T 24 BB A7
Ity A R S RE AR ) > AR A Y I 8 A
380,000 ¥ 7T 43 %% 38,000,000 A% 45 ¥ 18 {H 0.01
W oC M 4> B 210,000,000 G > A
1,000,000,000 5 JRETHI{F 0.01 %5 TT A A7 ©

MR A 7 E £y B J7 B Able Island 1 £ 5 7
Frel S r HW B % — =4 WA —+=HWE
ik R F-ZHENA ST ZH o AR
] 1] Able Tsland Hig ¥ 11 % 560 [ 22 J A5 R 2 )
(0B 1) B0y AR 7 G I 2 3 B 8 A7 Ik
A5 fUME 538,551,000 78 > LA G) A2 F 1)
Able Island it #5 & %17 999,990 [ A HE1E 41
SRy 5 B (i) A2 F ¥ Able Tsland BT 57 1
s R 480 3 s 3 R BV L 4 T (42 1
BT -

HRAEME— AR T — =43 A
R PR R > TEAR LS T Vi AR B IR i
BN BUEIR SN - WG R T — =4
JUA =T H Rl 2 fl s w2 3 B
AR ) B A5 i A R IR 4 AR I 2 3,844,000 5
JCHE R E AR HIAE R TH (E UL 17 Able Tsland
HiL % S 3547 1 384,400,000 HEHE Y ©

AoZ—ZAEF A+ R ARFEEERE
07 A BB 1.07 H5 7T 2 (B A% 1 358
PERE ~ 325 T At B #9517 129,600,000 [
IR 0.01 s 0 Z & 0y - A B EEAT 2 T %
B VR AR B 128,076,000 #5 T (2 41 BR 84T A
iy 2 B % 2& 110,596,0009 ¢ ) > Ho
1,296,000 # 7T J 126,780,000 # 7T £ 43 Al 5 A
P A B FBt 03 1
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F —U4E=H =+ — [ L4

29. SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports which
provides information about components of the Group. Information reported
to the Board, being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”), for the

purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance

focuses on brands of goods delivered.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments under HKFRS

8 are as follows:

—  Proprietary brands comprise the development, manufacturing and

sales of self-developed health supplements

—  Proprietary brands comprise the development, manufacturing and

sales of self-developed beauty supplements and products

—  Private label brands comprise the development, manufacturing and

sales of health supplements

—  Private label brands comprise the development, manufacturing and

sales of beauty supplements and products

Other items mainly relate to the provision of Chinese medical consultation
services. These activities are excluded from the reportable operating

segments as these activities are insignificant and not specifically reported to

the Board.
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29. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided to

the Board for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2014 is

set out below:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o B 5 e 3 W

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

29, s (48)

() ZrERSEAT
L e S e S K EYE
S HR AR RE VRS B K A 4
ESTIEES S & 3 fE S RS
Sy B BORHIRBT IT

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BREZZ-NE=A=1—HILEE

BN AR

Proprietary brands Private label brands
HA EPR:]
Beauty Beauty
Health  supplements Health  supplements Other
supplements  and products  supplements  and products items Total
FAH KA
FREERE R fh FREERE R fh JAbEH it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T T T
Revenue from external customers KA SNBEF 104,291 2277 27,505 8,755 856 169,684
Cost of sales HERA (22,511) (9.951) (4,158) 2,732 (340) (39,692)
Gross profit £l 81,780 18,326 23,347 6,023 516 129,992
Selling and distribution expenses SYE MBS (34,389 (8,350) (3,514) (2,051) - (48,304)
Administrative expenses (G (6,404) (388) (8,079 (818) - (15,689)
Segment results R 40,987 9,588 11,754 3,154 516 65,999
Other revenue and other netincome  HAlic s J AU A 48 2710
Unallocated head office and A AR A B
corporate expenses (68,158)
Finance costs BERA (104)
Profit before taxation BBt Al i A 447
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

29. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

29. g (48)
(a) JYHREAL - HE KA ()
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BECZ-ZHEZA=T—HIEEE

Proprietary brands Private label brands
YA A%
Beauty Beauty
Health supplements Health supplements
supplements  and products supplements  and products Other items Total
FAHifh FEHifh
RIEER R fh RO i R fh HAbER 5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000

T Tk Tiki Tk Tk Tiks

Revenue from external customers REMNDEF i 105,168 27,203 14914 15,637 845 163,767
Cost of sales HERA (21,419) (7,152) 2,070) (3,728) (387) (34,757)
Gross profit EA 83,749 20,051 12,843 11,909 458 129,010
Selling and distribution expenses B RS (24,200) (6,368) (2,043) (4.697) - (37,808)
Administrative expenses B (5,603) (985) (4,673) (1,495) - (12,756)
Segment results e 53,946 12,198 6,127 5717 458 78,446
Other revenue and other netincome  FiAtuics F MU A 5 48 1,337
Unallocated head office and R RA R

corporate expenses (33,189)
Finance costs BEA (110)
Profit before taxation

Bt i i A 46,484

HLRTAL 20 R B 73 3 1] 23 e

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and allocating

resources between segments, the CODM monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments. Segment results are evaluated based on reportable segment
profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted operating profit/loss before
tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit/loss before tax except that head office, corporate
income and expenses and finance costs are excluded from such
measurement. No segment assets and liabilities information is
presented as, in the opinion of the directors, such information is not

key indicator provided to the Group’s CODM.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

29. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b)

There are no significant inter-segment transfers or transactions.

Other segment information (included in the measure of segment
profit or loss or regularly provided to the CODM)

29,

gl (%)
(a) JYHREAL - HE KA ()
43 S A AW S5 55 o

Ho Al 7 58 B AL (FIA S B 17 3 it 2 B
R 1 T HREE IR 1)

Amortisation and Depreciation

filk g K A
2014 2013
R4 CE—EAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T Tt
Proprietary brands: LA
Health supplements A 7E 344 304
Beauty supplements and products FE A0 ity JEE iy 78 79
Private label brands: EERT] N
Health supplements AR 2 76 43
Beauty supplements and products S i B 24 46
Unallocated KA 1,262 995
Total Bt 1,784 1,467

Geographical information

The geographical location of customers is based on the location at

which the goods are delivered and services provided. In presenting

information on the basis of geographical, segments revenue is based

on the geographical location of customers. Segment assets and capital

expenditure are based on the geographical location of the assets.

(b) HulE &R
% 5 1 T E 3 AR5 1o 5 B A
AR 1 s [ 43 o BB 1 AN
5 0 7 A i 2 T AR 6 £ S 7 )
43 o Ml I U0 Bh ¥ e K A B ST AR
318 97 B R A S T A b [
B4 o
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29. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(b) Geographical information (Continued)

29. 4r#k e (450
(b) HIEFF (60

Revenue from external customers AR B AN % P e
2014 2013
SEemE o
HK$°000 HK$’000
F¥HoT Fisoc
Hong Kong s 167,631 163,767
Taiwan =] 2,053 -
169,684 163,767
Non-current assets IR
2014 2013
L
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#oc Tt
Hong Kong 75 17,659 16,868
Taiwan B 120 -
17,779 16,868
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

29. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
(c) Information about major customer

Revenues from external customer contributing 10% or more of the

29, s (48)
() FHEEFMER
b A B 3] 4048 264 10% s 2L BRI Ak B

total revenue from the Group is as follows: MR F U g B A BT AT
2014 2013
SEeWE SFe=
HK$°000 HK$’000
T FH
Customer A (note (i) EFH (M6 d)) 113,336 116,957
Note: B eE -
(i) The sales were derived from the following segments: (i) A7 BB R LN 5 oA AR

— Proprietary brands comprise the development, manufacturing and
sales of self-developed health supplements;

— Proprietary brands comprise the development, manufacturing and
sales of self-developed beauty supplements and products;

— Private label brands comprise the development, manufacturing and
sales of health supplements; and

— Private label brands comprise the development, manufacturing and
sales of beauty supplements and products.

30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee
At 31 March 2013 and 2014, the Group had outstanding commitments under

non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

— O R A R e E
s FR AT

— RPN RS R A
st B il P SEAT R

— O Wk A R e E
A A K

— RPN RS R A
sl B B R AR o

30. #8458 H B R
AR A 2 AR AL
REF SR EWESA=
ARSI A B RO 60 RELA SR AT B A
S0 2 o B L R -

2014 2013

ZR—PYLE —E =
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#oc THIT
Within one year —4ER 411 189
In the second to fifth year, inclusive WAE R TAEN > A 4E B B W 4E 57 132
468 321

The Group leases warehouses, office premises and staff quarters under non-

cancellable operating lease arrangements with lease terms of 1 to 2 years.

AR AR B W] R LA P 2
TH - WA E R B TGS A — E WA -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 31. i H & 2 W

(a)  On 10 September 2013, the Group disposed of the entire issued share (@) NZEFE—=FIATH  AREE A
I8 T AT R R T L E
Tk > DAV 1 i o0 4 LR EE B A
] Xaxon Cosmeceutical Inc ([ Xaxon])
I 2 1 RE 25 2 B Xaxon 71 5L B 1)
oo AR A AR DL 1T
A L ] R Jogg A ) 0 4 v A R
HRRAT - PRAEGRAA > HA
1007 B 2 7 % Wealth International
(Holdings) Limited 38 /] H B} 2 7 (48
## [ Wealth International Group]) 1 &=

capital in Xaxon Cosmeceutical Inc. (“Xaxon”) to Mr. Chan Yan Tak,
director of the Company, at a cash consideration of HK$1. On the
same day, the Group disposed of the entire issued share capital in
Royal Medic Management Limited, Sky China Enterprises Limited,
Men 100 Limited and Wealth International (Holdings) Limited and
its subsidiaries (altogether “Wealth International Group”) to Xaxon at

a cash consideration of HK$1 each.

FRHE A o
The net assets of these subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as AR A RS B A W Y A
follows: N
HKS$°000
THsC
Consideration received: TR -
Cash received B -
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: 4% 2= 5 il 5 /) & & [ B E 4047 -
Cash and cash equivalents B B B S ) )
Other payables HoAth AT FE 2,109
2,107
Result on disposal of subsidiaries: A OB A A 5 R
Consideration received A E -
Net liabilities derecognised E AR I B 2,107
Gain on disposal A A AR 2,107
Net cash flow arising on disposal: Hh B i A P B4 Y e Y
Cash consideration received Cl s R -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of STt 6 1 B 4 % B 4 S (B ) (2)
(2)
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)  31. 3 8&FE 2w (%)

(b)  On 11 September 2013, the Group disposed of the entire issued share (b)) AFE—=FIH T —HRLE
capital in Wise Medic Company Limited (“Wise Medic”) to Xaxon at Xaxon ] 37 B B ik - LAAE 1T

a cash consideration of HK$1.

A AL SR PR A ([ e e )
AR AR o

The net assets of Wise Medic at the date of disposal were as follows: JA B O HE BE 2 Y R R E
T
HK$°000
THsoC
Consideration received: TR -
Cash received B -
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: 2 3= J5 il 5 i) & 75 I B 5 4047 -
Other payables HoAth EA FR I 11
11
Result on disposal of subsidiaries: Hh B B A A 45 O -
Consideration received Cl R AE -
Net liabilities derecognised O 4 1 HERR 1) B R 11
Gain on disposal BRI 11
Net cash flow arising on disposal: B T 2R Y B A A
Cash consideration received S e AW -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of T A A B 4 I B 4 S AE ) -
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these

financial statements, the Group had the following transactions with its

related parties during the year:

32. BN LR
1 o s 45 A 20 B0 0 0 52 53 i B
B A I SR L R B35 I

(a) Related party transactions included in the consolidated (a) ®EAERE BB IR DR B9 B A
statement of financial position +32 5
2014 2013
—Py4E —E -4
HK$’000 HK$°000
T THsoT
Amount due to ultimate holding company, W} & &% % 2 W] Able Island AY
Able Island WRIH
— Repaid to — B 26,500 13,500
— Dividends — B2 = (40,000)
Outstanding balance (note 25) HRER (5L 25) - (26,500)
Amount due to a director, Chan Yan Tak JRE A — 4 T = B R Y ek I
— Repaid to — ENK 29 5,003
— Advanced from — K = (2,614)
Outstanding balance (note 25) fREE (f5E25) - (29)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including

amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 9 and

(b) FEAEBA EHH

A AR [ T A BN BN A B R 9
e B9 5 LA AR 2 ) 3 19 R I B

certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10, are as 10 F7 9% 575 © 25 T = 35 IR B K
follows: IE > @y

2014 2013

— Py4E TE =5

HK$°000 HKS$°000

T#t T

Short-term employee benefits R0 B AR A 8,209 4,164

Post-employment benefits B A% 47 113 80

Equity-settled share-based payments DU RESS 5 DL AR S0 AT 2 B 32 7,228 -

15,550 4,244
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o B 5 e 3 W

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

(CONTINUED)
(¢) Guarantees provided by a director and a fellow (¢
subsidiary

At 31 March 2013, certain banking facilities of the Group were

secured by guarantees provided by a director of the Company and a
fellow subsidiary in the amounts of HK$9,515,000 and
HK$1,500,000, respectively. These guarantees were released before
the listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock

Exchange.

32. BN LAY (4)

—HEFE KK RS A A
REEA I IR

RoE-=FE=A=1+—H  KEH
FHTRITME AN — L ERE R —
IR Z BT 2 50 43 B AL ) A8 R 3K00A
439,515,000 # 7t % 1,500,000 # 7T
PEHEAT o #E55 J 7] 2 B i 2 Al $2 Y
5 (R AR B3 B 52 T 81 26 A I
T A R B o

LOANS MADE BY RELATED PARTIES 33. BEN LA ARLE &G TR
UNDER A GUARANTEES GIVEN BY THE TEB R B
GROUP
Maximum liability
under the guarantee
PEORIE T I R E A
Name of related party Particulars of guarantee 2014 2013
BTS2 RN e S o2 TR -EAF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TF#5L Tt
Royal Trendy Limited Guarantees given by a subsidiary to a bank in respect of loans of
(note i) HK$1,575,000 and HK$7,000,000 expiring on 14 March 2026
Royal Trendy Limited and 15 June 2030
(BF&ED) — M2 w1 43 Tl 3 1,575,000 5 7T 12 7,000,000 #E 7T £ 5K
6] — ZZSRATAR B AR - Rl =% — R4 = +MH
B R =R AT - 8,575
Chan Yan Tak (note ii) Guarantee given by a subsidiary to a bank in respect of a loan of
ok LA (A 5 i) HK$5,658,000 expiring on 25 May 2021
— I 23 Rk 5,658,000 ¥ T I K A — KA TAE G R -
WA E - —FERA T HEW - 5,658

Notes: BT
(i) Royal Trendy Limited is a company wholly owned by Tsang Pui Man, spouse of @)
Chan Yan Tak, a director of the Company. The guarantees given to Royal Trendy
Limited were released before the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange.
(ii) The guarantee given to Chan Yan Tak was released before the listing of the (ii)

Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange.

Royal Trendy Limited /% — %% 1 4% 23 F) 3 55 B
TR T A G S 2 M 1A | o ] Royal
Trendy Limited F Hi 93 £ £ 7% 23 =] 1B 3 i
W ST L T R HE R BR o

16 PR A L M35 AR 28 AR 2 B B A7 A i 22
JIF i R B

RM Group Holdings Limited #3835 iR a® 143
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f o B 985 A B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

34. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENTS

Pursuant to a written resolution of the Company passed on 24 September
2013, the Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme, which
has been taken effect on 11 October 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”). On
22 November 2013, the Company granted share options (“‘Share Option(s)”)
to eligible persons of the Group to subscribe for a total of 36,500,000
ordinary share(s) of the Company in total at the exercise price of HK$1.64
per share of the Company under the Share Option Scheme and all the

grantees accepted the Share Options on the same date.

A summary of the Share Option Scheme of the Company is as follows:

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate the eligible
participants to optimize their performance and efficiency for the benefit of
the Group and attract and retain ongoing business relationship with the
eligible participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the

Group.

Eligible Participants
Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include:

(a) any director, employee or officer of any company in the Group
(whether full time or part time) (“Employee”), consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or a company in which the Group holds an

interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or

(b)  the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any discretionary
trust the discretionary objects of which include any director,
Employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner

or adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or

(c)  acompany beneficially owned by any director, Employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or

contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

34. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Total number of ordinary shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme and the percentage of the issued
share capital that it represents as at 31 March 2014
51,500,000 ordinary shares, being 10% of the issued share capital as at 31
March 2014.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Option Scheme
The maximum number of ordinary shares shall not exceed 1% of the issued

ordinary share capital of the Company in issue in any 12-month period.

Any grant of further Share Options above this limit shall be subject to the

approval of the Company’s shareholders at general meeting.

Period within which the Shares must be taken up under a
Share Option
A period to be determined by the Board and notified to the grantee, which

shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of such Share Option.

Minimum period for which a Share Option must be held
before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Board and notified to the grantee, there
is no minimum period for which a Share Option must be held before it can

be exercised.

Amount payable on acceptance
HK$1.00 for each lot of share options granted.

Period within which payments/calls/loans must be made/
repaid
Not applicable.

34. DLIBCHE %5 5 VA B Ay 3 AT 2 B 52

i

(78)

Jif JERE S 2 T Bk B AT 0 A R A
FHERABREF-NE=ZH=1—
H ik > Fidli AT A H 43 e
HE - F—-NE=ZH=+—H 1>
51,500,000 f 5 48 g > Ak © AT IRAR 10% -

S M AR T ) % 22 B 1 e g A

WA I B R 2 R R AR 4 AR AT A
AW A I C ST AR AN 1%

HE— A AT A R BRIV M FBCHEE TG 52 BR S
T BEHROR AR 2 R R o

AL 52 i Fs AR ZE 7R P A 4 38 IR

JUYFR ol 3 g phe S A R BN - T
RERZ ) FTEE NG I 4 o

S P AR VT AT o T ZEL Y A PR

W o 3 g 5 AT P A R 32 AL
JBCHE AT AT i S AT B IR o

2 40 IRg ZEL BT W K T
B E 2 IR 1.00 %G ©

sk, BBER A R Sk
1 PR
R -
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34. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price for any Share under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board and notified to the grantee and shall not be less
than the highest of:

(a)  the closing price of a Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the Share Option, which must

be a trading day;

(b)  the average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of grant of the Share Option; and
(c)  the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of the Share Option.

The remaining life of the scheme

The Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective until 23 September
2023, after which no further Share Options will be granted but the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects. Options complying with the provisions of the GEM Listing Rules
which are granted during the duration of the scheme and remain unexercised
immediately prior to 23 September 2023 shall continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of grant within the option period for which such

Share Options are granted, notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

34. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 34. DB HE &5 5 DA B0y 32 4F 2 BH 32

PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) (#8)
The remaining life of the scheme (Continued) A A R R A RO (7))

MRoE—PEZA =+ — R EERRE
HI - BEACHE TS IH T A 26,500,000 17 1 A
REM ARATE o ARYREA N LT AISE23%
BE E-NE=H=+—HILEE &
JROME ST B JE BT o MR RE R S B T

As at 31 March 2014 and up to the date of this report, 26,500,000 Share
Options were outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. Movements of
the Share Options, which were granted under the Share Option Scheme,
during the year ended 31 March 2014 are listed below in accordance with
chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules:

Asat  Granted on Asat
11 October 22 November Exercised/ 31 March
Category 2013 2013 Lapsed  Cancelled 2014 Note
REF—=F
+—A
QI St —+ZH i g I3
Ll +A+—H Bl R fikk s ZA=1—H Wk
Directors i
Mr. Chan Yan Tak [y as - 500,000 - - 500,000 1),(2)
Mr. Wong Mau Tai Y & - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 (), 2)
Mr. Foo Chi Ming A - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 1), (2
Professor Ng Ka Ming RELBIR - 500,000 - - 500,000 1),(2)
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul W ek - 500,000 - - 500,000 (1), (2)
Mr. Wei Jianan BHEEE - 500,000 - - 500,000 1), (2
Subtotal INGT - 12,000,000 - - 12,000,000
Continuous Contracts BEEH
Employee fRE - 14,500,000 - - 14,500,000 (), )
Consultants Jif 1 - 10,000,000 (10,000,000) - - 2),3)
Total s - 36,500,000 (10,000,000) - 26,500,000
Notes: BR3E -
1. The Share Options shall be exercisable at any time during the period from 22 1. WA - F—=F T —H T HREE

November 2013 until 21 November 2016 (both days inclusive).

The exercise price of the Share Option is HK$1.64.

300,000 Share Options shall be exercisable at any time during the period from 22
November 2013 until 21 November 2016 (both days inclusive); 4,850,000 Share
Options shall be exercisable at any time during the period from 21 May 2014 until
21 November 2016 (both days inclusive); and the remaining 4,850,000 of the Share
Options shall be exercisable at any time during the period from 21 November 2014
until 21 November 2016 (both days inclusive). 10,000,000 Share Options were
lapsed in January 2014.

The exercise price of the Share Options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights
or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the Share
Options were granted was HK$1.68.

FoAREF AR (BFEERMR) M
TH] 70 B A AT 5 ] W] 4508

W TRAEA T 8 2 19 1.64 50T -

300,000 i BEEERE A —F— =4+ —H =
ARE_F—ANF+—HA+—H(@FE
B W R ) A A AT o] R AT T AT 0 s
4,850,000 17 i e B —F—PUFERLH —+—
HEE -F—ANFE+—H - +—H(@iEE
FETA ) 1 T N (AT AT Wy T AT A48 5 Bk R
4,850,000 B e 5 —F — M4+ — A
“t—AREE-ANEF AT H(E
TE 8 R W R) A 0 AT o R ) AT T AT 08 o
10,000,000 3 i I HE A — % — U 4F — 1 2 4%
P&

U T A AT A AT AT BRI~ BT AL R A
O3 T A B AT Bl A e e

e 175 % 42 0 P R 52 s 1 300 T A o A 4
1.68 T ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

34. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The remaining life of the scheme (Continued)

The fair values of the Share Options granted during the year ended 31 March
2014 were calculated by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited using the
Trinominal Option Pricing Model which is one of the commonly used
models for such purpose. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any changes in the variables so
adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price (HK$) 1.64
Exercise price (HKS) 1.64
Expected life of Share Option (years) 3
Expected volatility 32.32%
Dividend yield 4.74%
Risk-free interest rate 0.45%
Fair value per Share Option (HK$) 0.2779

Expected volatility was derived by reference to the volatilities of companies

operating in the same industry as the Company, sourced from Bloomberg.

At 31 March 2014, 26,500,000 Share Options were fully vested and
exercisable. The Group recognised a total expense of approximately
HK$7,364,000 for the year ended 31 March 2014 in relation to the Share
Options granted by the Company to directors and employees.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The ultimate holding company of the companies comprising the Group is
Able Island Group Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. The controlling shareholders of the Group are Mr. Chan Yan Tak
and Able Island. The ultimate holding company does not produce financial
statements for public use.
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A (s T) 1.64
TS (HT) 1.64
TEHA P RO RE TR () 3
AT W 32.32%
ISR 4.74%
I Jm B R 0.45%
B B CRE () 22 F-{E (H590) 0.2779
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the end of reporting period are as

o o B 5 e 3 W

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

36. FZH 2w
AR T T B E TR 2 7 2 R

follows: wm
Nominal
Place of value of Percentage of
incorporation/ issued and equity
registration and paid-up  attributable to
operation capital the Company
Name R AL K CET K AT MEAS  Principal activities
R B B BMEEERA  MEREAL EEEHK
Direct Indirect
HiE MR
% %
Noble State Holdings Limited BVI US$11 100 — Investment holding
TR 5 FBEAT B 7 5 RS 1%t BB
Creation Chance Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Sale of health and beauty
Kol A A A RS 1T supplements and products and
provision of general
administrative services
BB DR A B S 20 O B i
PR A — AT BUIR S
CULegend Company Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Trading of products under the
(Formerly known as CM LEGEND il IR proprietary brand of “LEGEND”
Company Limited)* HE [ R P EEEuR | 506 5
ATy R R AR AT R ] E
Eastern Bright (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Providing management services to
T (R A PR A A R 1T other Group companies
1) FEA A 5 2 R 4R A HR R
Health Proof International Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 License holding
Company Limited RS 17T TR IR
T e B P A PR
Hong Kong Ever Spring Medicine Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Manufacturing and sale of health and
Factory Limited B 1T beauty supplements and products
U DU A O PR HE T BB B DR A B 2 o B E
Kiwi Lab International Company Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 License holding
A S oL B A R T i 17T R IR
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F —U4E=H =+ — [ L4

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

36. FEMHE A ()

Nominal
Place of value of Percentage of
incorporation/ issued and equity
registration and paid-up  attributable to
operation capital the Company
Name FEA AL & CEIT R AAFHESS  Principal activities
E4q B MEEERA  MmEatt  DEEH
Direct Indirect
HE R
%o %o
M2C Natural Health Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Trading of health products
i 17T fEE R AL 52 )
Medalist Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Trademark holding
ES ) eids 1T FRA AR
Power Regal International Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Property investment
NEREEARA T i LT LUES $ <y
Rich Sunny Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Property investment and
MR A PR T i 1T investment holding
LE S VS E LTl
Royal Medic Chinese Medicine Hong Kong HKS$3 - 100 Provision of Chinese medical
Clinic Limited s 3T consultation services and trading of
g5 h B B A PR A health products
SR AR el 2 A MRS T f R E B
Royal Medic (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 License holding
fHE s (D) ARRA T A itk 100 7T FEA AR
Sunny Regent (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Providing management services to
A B2 (R A PRA A RS 1T other Group companies
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

36. FEHHE A ()

Nominal
Place of value of Percentage of
incorporation/ issued and equity
registration and paid-up  attributable to
operation capital the Company
Name Rl B L K CEIT R AAFHESS  Principal activities
#H B BMEEERA  MEmEA DEER
Direct Indirect
HEE W%
% %o
Super Pioneer Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Providing management services to
RIFEEMARAR it 17T other Group companies
1) oA B A 5 2 R A A PR AR S
Wisdom Come Medical Group Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$101 - 100 Investment holding
R E AT R A A it 101 #7T BT
Wisdom Healthcare Co., Limited Taiwan NT10,000,000 - 100 Trading of health and
BB RREEARAH a 10,000,000 7T beauty supplements
Hak fl e R 2l 5
Wisdom Health Products Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of health and beauty
Company Limited RS 2T supplements and products and
B RE A RAR investment holding
DRAE B 250 i B E 5 o e
Ba e
* Incorporated on 17 September 2013 G e e S IWE I e = A
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % & —U4F = =+ —H L

37. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued

a few amendments and new standards which are not yet effective for the

year ended 31 March 2014 and which have not been adopted in these

financial statements. These include the following which may be relevant to

the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9
HKERS 14
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Investment Entities'

Accounting for Acquisition of Interests
in Joint Operations®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contribution?

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures®

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets!

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?

Financial Instruments?
Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
Levies!

Effective for annual periods beginning from 1 January 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning from 1 July 2014
Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined when

the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised

exceptions

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited

3 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1

January 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE COMPANY

38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF

o o B 5 e 3 W

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

38. A2 W] i A B R

2014 2013
TR —PYLE —EF—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
T¥IT Tkt
Non-current assets R & A
Investments in subsidiaries B E A A E 38,551 -
Current assets i A
Prepayments TAAT K 374 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE AT B 2 N - T 58,003 -
Cash and cash equivalents SRATHE B M B 100,433 -
158,810 -
Current liabilities i £ 48
Accruals JEFT#IH 1,281 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST B\ - #E = 228
1,281 228
Net current assets/(liabilities) mEEE, (A FE 157,529 (228)
Net assets/(liabilities) B (AHE) #E 196,080 (228)
EQUITY W2
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AN F AT N IREAGHE 7
Share capital A 5,150 -
Reserves (note) Tt (B sE) 190,930 (228)
TOTAL EQUITY HE 75 BE B 196,080 (228)

RM Group Holdings Limited f#g 2 Mz amA® 153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f o B 985 A B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F —U4E=H =+ — [ L4

38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

38. A4l B B B OB E 2 (4E)

Note: BiFsE
RESERVES ikt
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share Contributed  Share option retained
premium surplus reserve earnings Total
(R&EHER),~
JBe Ay i 21 M AR i JBE R £t PR ER ) Hast
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt T T Tt T
(note a) (note b) (note e)
(FF3E 2) (FFE b) (WfE e)
The Company AT
At 1 April 2012 W E— AN A —H - - - (44) (44)
Loss and total comprehensive loss A A e 4R S 4 T
for the year Jhe 18 A A - - - (184) (184)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 MW —ZE=ZA=+—H
B _F— =AM —H - - - (228) (228)
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 [y 4 A [ 4 i
for the year W A R - - - 22,317 22,317
Issue of ordinary shares pursuant AR5 T AR A4 T 11 3 i
to the Reorganisation - 38,541 - - 38,541
Capitalisation issue YL BT (3.844) - - - (3,844)
Issuance of new shares MR e 53817
by way of placing 137,376 - - - 137,376
Share issue expense AR 35 4T B % (10,596) - - - (10,596)
Equity-settled share-based payments DI HE S5 5 AR A5 2
B 2 - - 7,364 - 7,364
At 31 March 2014 o FE—MEZA=+—H 122,936 38,541 7,364 22,089 190,930
Notes: st -
(a) The application of the share premium account of the Company is governed by the (a) AR R M3 Vi A5 R 2 B PR 32 DA 2 O 2 WD 9

Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account are distributable to shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #(% % —UHFE=H =+—H ILFJ#

38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

(Continued)

On initial listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange on 11 October
2013 when the share premium account of the Company was being credited, directors
of the Company were authorised to capitalise an amount of HK$3,844,000 from
such account and applying such sum in paying up in full as par a total of 384,400,000
shares of allotment and issued to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appeared on the register of members of the Company at the close of business on 24
September 2013.

On 11 October 2013, 129,600,000 new shares of the Company with par value of
HKS$0.01 each were issued for subscription and purchase by selected institutional,
professional and other investors at the placing price of HK$1.07 per share. As a
result, share premium of HK$137,376,000 was credited to the share premium
account. The transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares of
HK$10,596,000 were deducted from the share premium account.

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value of the
ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset value of subsidiaries
acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant to the group reorganisation prior to
the listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal values of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the share capital of subsidiaries acquired through
an exchange of shares pursuant to the group reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(s).

The share option reserve represents the fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to employees of a subsidiary recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments set out in note 2(0)(ii).

B

38. A2l B S B BRI R 2 (AE)

i

BEEE (D)

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

(%)

RAFRBR T —=F A+ — AR
T A2 T b Tl IR - AN W 2 B v B MR A IR
AR ) AR AT B A R R 3,844,000 T
TCEAAY > LA T (4002 e 5 R EEAT T
T SARSUH I SR R AL AN 4 51
AR ) R 2 M 2 B A 4 384,400,000 1% i
iy e

WoFE—ZAE A+ — B o AN R A
£0.01 #5 JT 2 17 129,600,000 AT e 443 DA 4k 46
PR RS - B2 R A A R R
T B A8 2 49 I 1.07 W 06 » AU > 137,376,000
T T B3 06 1 L AR e (IR A o 34T 0T
JI& A5 22 5 W AR A 3K010,596,000 5 TG 7E i) 1y
T B AT o

BB R A 2 T C AT T (B
SRR AR 2 W JBEAR T W 2 BT A S AR T i 2
AL A A0 A3 WS R 2 R T 2
% o

A DFAf 15 A0 2 ) 3R AT 9 e 2 T (H B0
AR AR 2 ] P 0 T g S BT S AR Tl 2
i A A S A A ) 2 IR 2 22

A A CLAE T AT 5 A R 2 BB AR
T 7 AR 2 B S0 28 B0 o W% A T AR B B 5 2(s)
STz R R

W PR HRE 5t A8 ) 48 AR B 5 2(0) (il T 4R b & st
U DA R HE 45 57 AR 0y S A8 2 B S > wlesR e
T B A R B B A F R 2 R AT
il B I 2 A TH »
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
4 5 1BE 2

RESULTS E ¥
2012 2013 2014
ST ZE-=F 22 —NE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T Fon
Turnover oA 158,793 163,767 169,684
Profit before taxation i A s 1 52,594 46,484 447
Taxation BiIE (9,562) (7,220) (6,180)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners AR T A NEAGFE RN
of the Company A (EER) 43,032 39,264 (5,733)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 299 8=L -
2012 2013 2014
TE—TAE IE—E R NE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T Tt
Total assets L 89,528 82,929 186,589
Total liabilities WA fE (50,241) (44,378) (18,458)
Total equity HE 45 SR 39,287 38,551 168,131

Note: The figures for the two years ended 31 March 2012 and 2013 have been extracted from the

Prospectus.
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